
   
 
 

 
 
 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 855 W. BASE LINE ROAD, RIALTO, CA 92376 

PH: (909) 875-1804   FAX: (909) 875-1849 
  
 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 AGENDA 
  

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2021 
CLOSED SESSION - 6:00 PM ● OPEN SESSION – 6:15 PM 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Channing Hawkins, President 
Kyle Crowther, Vice President 
Dr. Michael Taylor, Director 
Greg Young, Director 
Dr. Clifford Young, Director 

 

"In order to comply with legal requirements for posting of agendas, only those items filed 
with the District Secretary's office by noon, on Wednesday a week prior to the following 
Thursday meeting, not requiring departmental investigation, will be considered by the 
Board of Directors." 

 
Teleconference Notice: In an effort to prevent the spread of COVID-19 (Coronavirus), and 
in accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20 and the order of the County of 
San Bernardino dated March 17, 2020, there will be no public location for attending this 
Board Meeting in person. Members of the public may listen and provide public comment 
via telephone by calling the following number and access code: Dial: (888) 475-4499, Access 
Code: 840-293-7790 or you may join the meeting using Zoom by clicking this link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790. Public comment may also be submitted via email 
to the Board Secretary, Peggy Asche at peggy@wvwd.org. The webinar will also be available 
for public viewing by visiting www.wvwd.org. If you require additional assistance, please 
contact peggy@wvwd.org. 

  

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Opening Prayer 
Roll Call of Board Members 

ADOPT AGENDA 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790
mailto:peggy@wvwd.org
http://www.wvwd.org/
mailto:peggy@wvwd.org


PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Any person wishing to speak to the Board of Directors on matters listed or not listed on the agenda, within its 
jurisdiction, is asked to complete a Speaker Card and submit it to the District Clerk.  Each speaker is limited to 
three (3) minutes.  Under the State of California Brown Act, the Board of Directors is prohibited from discussing or 
taking action on any item not listed on the posted agenda.  Comments related to noticed Public Hearing(s) and 
Business Matters will be heard during the occurrence of the item. 
 

Public communication is the time for anyone to address the Board on any agenda item or 

anything under the jurisdiction of the District. Also, please remember that no disruptions from 

the crowd will be tolerated. If someone disrupts the meeting, they will be removed. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one vote.  There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Board of Directors, Staff Member, or any member of the 
public request a specific item(s) be removed for separate action.  
 
Consideration of:  

1. August 5, 2021 – Regular Board Meeting Minutes.  (Page No. 5) 

2. Adopt Resolution 2021-21, Adopting the 2021 Hazard Mitigation Plan.  (Page No. 11) 

3. Letter of Support to Representative Norma Torres for Sponsoring the H.R. 3470, Myles 
Edward Scott Act (Nitrous Oxide Bill).  (Page No. 139) 

4. Approval of Payment to Ivie McNeill Wyatt Purcell & Diggs, for Professional Services 
rendered in July 2021, Invoice No. 744987; $16,311.45.  (Page 141) 

5. Approval of Payment to Liebert Cassidy Whitmore, for Professional Services rendered in 
February 2021, Invoice No. 1516633; $11,449.00.  (Page No. 142)   

6. Approval of Payment to Liebert Cassidy Whitmore, for Professional Services rendered in 
March 2021, Invoice No. 1518522; $639.00.  (Page No. 143) 

7. Approval of Payment to Hunt Ortmann Palffy Nieves Darling & Mah, Inc. for 
Professional Services rendered in July 2021, Invoice No. 89241; $11,607.00.  (Page No. 
144) 

 
BUSINESS MATTERS  
    Consideration of:  
 
 None 
 
REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 
 

1. Board Members 



2. General Manager 

3. Legal Counsel 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

1. September 2, 2021 – West Valley Water District Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 
6:45 p.m. (6:00 p.m. Closed Session), at District Headquarters. 

2. September 6, 2021 – District Offices will be CLOSED in Observance of Labor Day. 

3. September 7, 2021 – San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Regular Board 
Meeting at 2:00 p.m., 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, CA 92408. 

4. September 8, 2021 - West Valley Water District Finance Committee Meeting at 1:00 
p.m., at District Headquarters. 

5. September 8, 2021 - West Valley Water District Engineering, Operations & Planning 
Committee at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

6. September 9, 2021 - West Valley Water District External Affairs Committee Meeting at 
6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

7. September 13, 2021 - West Valley Water District Human Resources Committee Meeting 
at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

8. September 14, 2021 – West Valley Water District Safety & Technology Committee 
Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

9. September 16, 2021 – West Valley Water District Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 
6:45 p.m. (6:00 p.m. Closed Session), at District Headquarters. 

10. September 21, 2021 – San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Regular Board 
Meeting at 2:00 p.m., 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, CA 92408. 

11. September 28, 2021 - West Valley Water District Policy Review & Oversight Committee 
Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters. 

 

UPCOMING EDUCATIONAL & TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 

1. Oct. 6-7, 2021 – WaterSmart Innovations Conference. 

CLOSED SESSION 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9(b):  Number of Cases:  One (1). 

 



 

ADJOURN 

 
DECLARATION OF POSTING:  
 
I declare under penalty of perjury, that I am employed by the West Valley Water District and 
posted the foregoing Agenda at the District Offices on August 30, 2021. 

 

 
Peggy Asche, Board Secretary 
  
Please Note: 
 
Material related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 855 W. 
Baseline, Rialto, during normal business hours.  Also, such documents are available on the 
District’s website at www.wvwd.org subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before 
the meeting. 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to attend or 
participate in the above-agendized public meeting should be directed to Peggy Asche, at 
least 72 hours in advance of the meeting to ensure availability of the requested service or 
accommodation.  Ms. Asche may be contacted by telephone at (909) 875-1804 ext. 703, or in 
writing at the West Valley Water District, P.O. Box 920, Rialto, CA 92377-0920.  
 

 

http://www.wvwd.org/


WVWD 

Minutes: 8/5/21 

MINUTES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

of  the 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

August 5, 2021  

              Attendee 
Name 

Present Excused Absent 

Board of Directors    

Channing Hawkins    

Michael Taylor remote   

Kyle Crowther remote   

Clifford Young remote   

Gregory Young    

Staff    

Shamindra Manbahal    

Van Jew    

Naseem Farooqi    

Haydee Sainz    

Peggy Asche    

Maisha Mesa remote   

Linda Jadeski     

Jon Stephenson    

Joanne Chan    

Albert Clinger     

Jose Velasquez     

Legal Counsel    

Robert Tafoya    
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Director Greg Young 
Opening Prayer - Led by Pastor Bratton, Greater Faith Grace Bible Church 
Call to Order 
Roll Call of Board Members 

ADOPT AGENDA 

Director Greg Young motioned to adopt the agenda as presented and Director Dr. Clifford 
Young second the motion.  Hearing no discussion, the following vote was taken: 

 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 5



WVWD 

Minutes: 8/5/21 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Gregory Young, Director 

SECONDER: Clifford Young, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Kyle Crowther, Clifford Young, Gregory 
Young 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

President Hawkins inquired if any member of the public would like to address the Board 
members.  Ms. Peggy Asche, Board Secretary, reported that she received an email from Mr. 
Hardy Brown and his concerns were read to the Board members and his email will be kept 
on file.  Also, Director June Hayes, San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 
requested to speak.  

PRESENTATION 

• IE Works Intern Introduction. 

Mr. Shamindra Manbahal reported that with the vision of President Channing Hawkins 
and the Board members, this program took almost one and a half years to get under way.   
JVS helped tremendously to guide the district through it and secure funding for the 
program.  There are three interns who are starting off the first phase of the ten-week 
program. Haydee Sainz, Director of Human Resources and Risk Management, presented 
a bio on two of the interns and introduced Dimitirius Glass and Jacinda Ashbaugh.  
Both interns thanked the Board and stated that they really appreciated this opportunity.     

• New Employees Introduction. 

Haydee Sainz, Director of Human Resources and Risk Management introduced two new 
employees that will be working in the field.  Albert Herrera, Water Systems Operator I 
and Connor McReynolds, Water Systems Operator I.   

• Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Expansion Update. 

 Linda Jadeski, Director of Engineering, updated the Board on the expansion of the 
Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility project.  Currently working on the SRF Loan 
Funding with our consultants.  The general information package along with the technical 
and financial packages have been submitted.  A SRF Project Manager has been assigned.  
The last package to be completed is the Environmental, which entails CEQA - draft 
IS/MND and will be circulating that for a 30-day review period for the public.  On the 
design build firm side, an expression of interest was issued and received six design build 
firms and posted a Request for Qualifications on PlanetBids in June.  There have been 
individual site visits with the team and are expecting four teams to submit their 
qualifications.  The district is expecting potential impacts to the construction costs, due 
to Covid-19, such as: material costs are going up, some other items were discovered 
during the 30% design period, upgrades and modifications, as well as replacement of 
current items at the Roemer Plant.  The Board thanked Mrs. Jadeski for keeping them 
updated.   

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 6



WVWD 

Minutes: 8/5/21 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Director Greg Young motioned to adopt the Consent Calendar requesting to move Item 
No.’s 16 and 21 for separate discussion.  Director Dr. Michael Taylor second the motion.  
Hearing no discussion, the following vote was taken: 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Gregory Young, Director 

SECONDER: Michael Taylor, Director 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Kyle Crowther, Clifford Young, Gregory 
Young 

1. JULY 1, 2021 – REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES.   

2. JULY 15, 2021 – REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES.   

3. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-17, ADOPTING THE AREA OF LAFCO 3243 (I-15 
LOGISTICS PROJECT) INTO WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
ELECTION DISTRICT.   

4. I-10 CEDAR AVENUE INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT:  
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AMENDMENT NO. 2.   

5. TASK ORDER NO. 2 WITH TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES FOR 
BIOLOGICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES FOR 
THE ZONE 3 RESERVOIR 8-3 AND 8-4.   

6. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR TCP IMPACT AND 
SOLUTION STUDY.   

7. PURCHASE OF ZONE 6 PROPERTY FOR WELL SITE.   

8.  LAND PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF ZONE 8 
PROPERTY.  

9. WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE INSTALLATION AND 
CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT WITH RICHLAND DEVELOPERS, INC. 
FOR LYTLE CREEK ROAD WATER IMPROVEMENT PLANS MONARCH 
HILLS DEVELOPMENT TTM 20010. 

10. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE CLASSIFICATION 
AND COMPENSATION STUDY.   

11. REINSTATE ORDINANCE NO. 86, AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT WITH RESPECT 
TO COMPENSATION AND POLICIES RELATED TO BOARD 
ACTIVITIES.   

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 7



WVWD 

Minutes: 8/5/21 

12. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED THROUGH APRIL 30, 2021, FOR 
CONFIDENTIAL PERSONNEL MATTERS, INVOICE NO’S. 1520673; 
$803.00.   

13. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED FROM MARCH 31, 2021, TO 
JUNE 30, 2021, FOR GENERAL SERVICES, INVOICE NO’S. 1518520, 1520378, 
1522474, AND 200737; TOTALING $10,198.60.   

14. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED FROM MARCH 31, 2021, TO 
JUNE 30, 2021, FOR PERSONNEL RULES AUDIT, INVOICE NO’S 1518521, 
1520379, 1522475 AND 200736; TOTALING $2,597.00.   

15. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO HUNT ORTMANN PALFFY NIEVES, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN JUNE 2021, INVOICE NO. 
88849; $30,156.50.   

16. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO LEAL TREJO, FOR PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES RENDERED IN MAY 2021, INVOICE NO. 18475; $4,582.50.  (Item 
16 & 21 was moved to Business Matters for discussion during the adoption of the 
Consent Calendar).  

17. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO REED & DAVIDSON, LLP, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN MAY 2021, INVOICE NO. 
42216; $12,502.50.  

18. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO REED & DAVISON, LLP, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN JUNE 2021, INVOICE NO. 
42320; $19,859.00.   

19. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO IVIE MCNEILL WYATT PURCELL & 
DIGGS, FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN MAY, INVOICE 
NO. 744727, DAVIS V. WVWD; $2,085.00.   

20. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO IVIE MCNEILL WYATT PURCELL & 
DIGGS, FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN MAY, INVOICE 
NO. 744728, ROMERO V. WVWD; $405.00.   

21. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO TAFOYA LAW GROUP, APC, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN JULY 2021, INVOICE NO. 21-
1006; $23,356.50.   (Item 16 & 21 was moved to Business Matters for discussion during 
the adoption of the Consent Calendar). 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 8



WVWD 

Minutes: 8/5/21 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

16. APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO LEAL TREJO, FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
RENDERED IN MAY 2021, INVOICE NO. 18475; $4,582.50. (Moved from the Consent 
Calendar). 

Director Dr. Michael Taylor motioned to approve Business Items 16 and 21 with one vote.  
Vice President Kyle Crowther second the motion.  There was no discussion regarding the 
items.  The vote below was taken with Director Dr. Clifford Young voting “No”. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Michael Taylor, Director 

SECONDER: Kyle Crowther, Vice President 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Kyle Crowther, Gregory Young 

NAYS: Clifford Young 

21.  APPROVAL OF PAYMENT TO TAFOYA LAW GROUP, APC, FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED IN JULY 2021, INVOICE NO. 21-1006; 
$23,356.50.  (Moved from the Consent Calendar). 

Director Dr. Michael Taylor motioned to approve Business Items 16 and 21 with one vote.  
Vice President Kyle Crowther second the motion.  There was no discussion regarding the 
items.  The vote below was taken with Director Dr. Clifford Young voting “No”. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Michael Taylor, Director 

SECONDER: Kyle Crowther, Vice President 

AYES: Channing Hawkins, Michael Taylor, Kyle Crowther, Gregory Young 

NAYS: Clifford Young 

REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 

1. Board Members 

O Director Greg Young congratulated the new employees and interns and welcomed them to 
the district.  He reported that the last three weeks have been very difficult for him and his 
family and stated that is why he missed a Board meeting.  His Dad was in a plane crash, but 
thankfully now he is doing better and wanted to thank all who reached out for support. 

O President Hawkins stated that he is very sorry to hear about Director Young’s Dad and 
wished him and his family well.   

O Director Dr. Michael Taylor also echoed President Hawkins remarks.  Also, welcomed the 
new employees and interns to the district.  It’s great to see that this new Program is working 
out well. 

2. General Manager 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 9



WVWD 

Minutes: 8/5/21 

O Mr. Shamindra Manbahal is happy to hear that Director Young’s Dad is doing better and 
sorry to hear what he had to go through.  Welcomed the new employees and interns and told 
them to take full advantage of their learning opportunities. Reported that he attended a 
Southern California Water Coalition quarterly meeting in Ontario and enjoyed meeting new 
colleagues in the water industry. Also, attended Utility Water Management Conference 
yesterday and stated that other colleagues are also expanding their Plants.  The district is 
continuing its partnership with Valley Water as they supported the district in our WIFIA 
letter submittal request and has asked the district to do the same for them.   

3. Legal Counsel 

o Mr. Robert Tafoya also passed along his good wishes to Director Young’s Dad and glad to 
hear that he is doing well.  Mr. Tafoya reported out of Closed Session stating that no 
reportable action was taken. 

CLOSED SESSION 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION - 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 
54956.9(b):  Number of Cases:  Four (4). 

• CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (54957.6) DISTRICT 
NEGOTIATORS; Shamindra Manbahal, Haydee Sainz, Robert Tafoya, Union Negotiators; 
re:  International Union of Operating Engineers, Local 12. 

• CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION – John Rios v. 
West Valley Water District, Case No. CIVDS1937224. 

• CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (54956.8) – Purchase and 
Sale Agreement for Zone 6 Property, Remaining Lot of Tract No. 20018. 

• CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (54956.8) - Contract for 
Zone 8 Property, APN NO. 0239-041-23. 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Channing Hawkins 
President of the Board of Directors 
of West Valley Water District 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Peggy Asche, Board Secretary 
 

2.1.a

Packet Pg. 10



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
STAFF REPORT 

 
DATE: September 2, 2021 

TO: Board of Directors 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA) establishes requirements for state and local 
entities to prepare and keep updated a comprehensive HMP.  In order to be eligible for mitigation 
assistance, pre-disaster mitigation, and hazard mitigation grant programs, each jurisdiction must 
submit a plan to California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) for approval.  The regulation requires that HMPs be updated and 
resubmitted to FEMA for approval every five years in order for jurisdictions to remain eligible for 
FEMA grant programs. 
 
DISCUSSION:  
 
The Original HMP was adopted by the West Valley Water District (District) on November 18, 2010.  
District staff participated with Cal OES in the planning process to revise the HMP according to 
compliance standards set forth by FEMA.  The 2021 updated HMP reflects changes in 
development, progress of previously identified mitigation projects in the 2010 HMP, and hazard 
priorities.  Attached as Exhibit D – 2021 HMP. 
 
Timeline: 

• HMP was submitted to Cal OES for review on June 14, 2021. 

• HMP was submitted to FEMA by Cal OES on June 24, 2021. 

• FEMA provided feedback on July 28, 2021. 

• FEMA approved HMP “pending adoption by the District” on August 20, 2021. 
 
In order to receive final Federal approval, the District must formally adopt the HMP.  Staff 
recommends adoption of this document to obtain final Federal approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None.  The adoption of the HMP is a pre-requisite for receiving pre-disaster mitigation grant funds, 
disaster response reimbursements and mitigation project reimbursements linked to damages 
resulting from a federal and/or state disaster declaration. 
 

FROM: Shamindra Manbahal , General Manager 

SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF THE 2021 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT LOCAL 
HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (HMP) 

2.2

Packet Pg. 11



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends that this item be submitted for consideration, and that the Board of Directors 
approve this item and authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary documents. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Shamindra Manbahal, General Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
SM:jc 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-21 

2. Exhibit B - Cal OES Letter 
3. Exhibit C - FEMA Letter 
4. Exhibit D - 2021 HMP 

2.2

Packet Pg. 12



EXHIBIT A 

2.2.a

Packet Pg. 13



2  

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-21 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING THE 2021 HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the West Valley Water District that: 
 

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA) was adopted by the Federal 
government and, among other things, requires local authorities to prepare a Hazards Mitigation 
Plan (HMP) which will be utilized to protect citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, private 
property and the environment from natural hazards through varying means, including increasing 
public awareness and identifying resources available for risk reduction and loss prevention; and 

 
WHEREAS, the HMP was prepared April 2021 through a process which included a 

planning committee and was presented for public input from April 27, 2021 to June 11, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the HMP is a five year plan subject to evaluation on an annual basis with a 
revision to be prepared every five years based on the continuing evaluation of the HMP. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of West Valley 

Water District adopts the 2021 HMP; and 
 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 2nd DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Channing Hawkins 
President of the Board of Directors  

West Valley Water District 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 

Peggy Asche 
Board Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 

2.2.a

Packet Pg. 14



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2.b

Packet Pg. 15



3650 SCHRIEVER AVENUE    MATHER, CA 95655 

MITIGATION PLANNING DIVISION 

(916) 845-8177    (916) 845-8397

GAVIN NEWSOM 

GOVERNOR 

MARK S. GHILARDUCCI 

DIRECTOR 

June 24, 2021 

Alison Kearns 

Risk Analysis Branch Chief 

Mitigation Division 

Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region IX 

1111 Broadway Street, Suite 1200 

Oakland, California  94607 

Subject:   West Valley Water District Local Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Dear Ms. Kearns: 

The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) is forwarding 

the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan for the West Valley Water District for formal 

review. The documents were transmitted to FEMA electronically 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (916) 845-8531 or Karen 

McCready-Hoover Emergency Services Coordinator, Local Mitigation Planning 

Unit, at (916) 845-8177. 

Sincerely, 

VICTORIA LAMAR-HAAS, Chief 

Local Mitigation Planning Unit 

Enclosures 

c: Joanne Chan, Operations Manager, West Valley Water District 

2.2.b

Packet Pg. 16



 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.c

Packet Pg. 17



2.2.c

Packet Pg. 18



 
 

EXHIBIT D 
 
 

 

 

 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 19



1 

SAFE  HIGH  QUALITY  RELIABLE 
HARZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

Rickey S. Manbahal, MPA 
General Manager 

Board of Directors 
President Channing Hawkins, District 4 
Vice President Kyle Crowther, District 1 
Director Dr. Michael Taylor, District 2       

Director Dr. Clifford O. Young, Sr., District 3 
Director Greg Young, District 5 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 20



2  

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-21 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING THE 2021 HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the West Valley Water District that: 
 

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA) was adopted by the Federal 
government and, among other things, requires local authorities to prepare a Hazards Mitigation 
Plan (HMP) which will be utilized to protect citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, private 
property and the environment from natural hazards through varying means, including increasing 
public awareness and identifying resources available for risk reduction and loss prevention; and 

 
WHEREAS, the HMP was prepared April 2021 through a process which included a 

planning committee and was presented for public input from April 27, 2021 to June 11, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the HMP is a five year plan subject to evaluation on an annual basis with a 
revision to be prepared every five years based on the continuing evaluation of the HMP. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of West Valley 

Water District adopts the 2021 HMP; and 
 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED THIS 2nd DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Channing Hawkins 
President of the Board of Directors  

West Valley Water District 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 

Peggy Asche 
Board Secretary 

 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 21



3  

 

Table of Contents 
 

 
 

 

Section 1: Introduction .......................................................................................................... 6 
1.1 Purpose of the Plan ................................................................................... 6 
1.2 Authority .................................................................................................. 6 
1.3 Community Profile ................................................................................... 6 

1.3.1 Physical Setting ............................................................................ 7 
1.3.2 History .......................................................................................... 7 
1.3.3 Demographics ............................................................................... 9 
1.3.4 Existing Land Use ........................................................................ 9 
1.3.5 Development Trends .................................................................. 12 

Section 2: Plan Adoption ..................................................................................................... 13 
2.1 Adoption by Local Governing Body ...................................................... 13 
2.2 Promulgation Authority .......................................................................... 13 
2.3 Primary Point of Contact ........................................................................ 13 
2.4 Record of Changes ................................................................................. 14 

Section 3: Planning Process ................................................................................................ 15 
3.1 Preparing for the Plan ............................................................................. 15 

3.1.1 Planning Team ............................................................................ 17 
3.2 Coordination with Other Jurisdictions, Agencies, and 

Organizations ......................................................................................... 18 
3.3 Public Involvement/Outreach ................................................................. 18 
3.4 Assess the Risk and Hazard ................................................................... 19 
3.5 Set Goals ................................................................................................ 19 
3.6 Review and Propose Mitigation Measures ............................................. 20 
3.7 Draft the Hazard Mitigation Plan ........................................................... 20 
3.8 Adopt the Plan ........................................................................................ 20 

Section 4: Risk Assessment ................................................................................................. 20 
4.1 Hazard Identification .............................................................................. 20 

4.1.1 Hazard Screening Criteria .......................................................... 20 
4.1.2 Hazard Assessment Matrix ......................................................... 21 
4.1.3 Hazard Prioritization .................................................................. 22 

4.2 Hazard Profiles ....................................................................................... 23 
4.2.1 Drought Hazard .......................................................................... 23 

 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 22



4  

 

Table of Contents (cont'd) 

4.2.2 Earthquake Hazard ..................................................................... 33 
4.2.3 Flooding Hazard ......................................................................... 38 
4.2.4 Wildfires Hazard ........................................................................ 46 
4.2.5 Terrorism Hazard ....................................................................... 52 

4.3 Inventory Assets ..................................................................................... 54 
4.3.1 Population ................................................................................... 54 
4.3.2 Buildings .................................................................................... 54 
4.3.3 Critical Facility List ................................................................... 58 

4.4 Vulnerability Assessment ....................................................................... 59 
4.4.1 Methodology .............................................................................. 59 
4.4.2 Drought Vulnerability Analysis ................................................. 60 
4.4.3 Earthquake Vulnerability Analysis ............................................ 61 
4.4.4 Flash Flooding Vulnerability Analysis ...................................... 61 
4.4.5 Flooding Vulnerability Analysis ................................................ 62 
4.4.6 Wildfires Vulnerability Analysis ............................................... 62 
4.4.7 Potential Loss Estimation ........................................................... 62 

Section 5: Community Capability Assessment ................................................................... 65 
5.1 Agencies and People .............................................................................. 65 
5.2 Existing Plans ......................................................................................... 73 
5.3 Regulations, Codes, Policies, and Ordinances ....................................... 76 
5.4 Mitigation Programs ............................................................................... 76 
5.5 Fiscal Resources ..................................................................................... 86 

Section 6: Mitigation Strategies .......................................................................................... 87 
6.1 Overview ................................................................................................ 87 
6.2 Mitigation 5-Year Progress Report ........................................................ 87 
6.3 Mitigation Goals, Objectives, and Projects ............................................ 87 

6.3.1 All Hazards ................................................................................. 88 
6.3.2 Earthquakes ................................................................................ 88 
6.3.3 Drought ....................................................................................... 89 
6.3.4 Flood ........................................................................................... 91 

6.4 Mitigation Priorities ............................................................................... 91 
6.5 Implementation Strategy ........................................................................ 92 

Section 7: Plan Maintenance ............................................................................................... 95 
7.1 Monitoring, Evaluating and Updating the Plan ...................................... 95 
7.2 Implementation through Existing Programs .......................................... 97 
7.3 Continued Public Involvement ............................................................. 101 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 23



5  

 

Appendixes 
 

Appendix A: Planning Process & Public Involvement ..........................................................102 

      Appendix B: Earthquake Profile........................................................................................... 112 
 

List of Tables 
 

 

Table 1: Projected Growth in Total Number of Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) 

Table 2: Record Change 

Table 3: Hazard Assessment Screening Matrix – Calculated Priority Risk Index 

Table 4: Calculated Priority Risk Index Ranking for West Valley Water District 

Table 5: Drought History 

Table 6: Earthquake History 

Table 7: Flooding History 

Table 8: Wildfire History 
 

Table 9: Terrorism History  

Table 10: Critical Facilities for the District 

Table 11: Economic Impacts on Critical Facilities for the District 

Table 12: Mitigation Action Matrix 

Table 13: Capital Improvement Program 

List of Figures 
 

 

Figure 1:  District Service Area 
 

Figure 2:   Existing Land Use 

Figure 3:   Future Land Use 

Figure 4:   Planning Phase Timeline 

Figure 5:   Drought History 

Figure 6:   Flood Map  

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 24



6  

Figure 7:   Fire Hazard Severity Maps 

Section 1: Introduction                                                           

1.1 Purpose of the Plan 
Emergencies and disasters cause death or leave people injured or displaced; cause significant 
damage to our communities, businesses, public infrastructure, and our environment; and cost 
tremendous amounts in terms of response and recovery dollars and economic loss. 

 
Hazard mitigation reduces or eliminates losses of life and property. After disasters, repairs and 
reconstruction are often completed in such a way as to simply restore to pre-disaster conditions. 
Such efforts expedite a return to normalcy; however, the replication of pre-disaster conditions 
results in a cycle of damage, reconstruction, and repeated damage. Hazard mitigation ensures 
that such cycles are broken and that post-disaster repairs and reconstruction result in a reduction 
in hazard vulnerability. 

 
While no one can prevent disasters from happening, their effects can be reduced or eliminated 
through a well-organized public education and awareness effort, preparedness, and mitigation. 
For those hazards which cannot be fully mitigated, the West Valley Water District (District) 
must be prepared to provide efficient and effective response and recovery. 

 
1.2 Authority 
As required by the Department of Homeland Security’s Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (DHS-FEMA), all Hazard Mitigation Plans (HMP) must be updated, adopted and 
approved every five (5) years; the District’s current HMP expires in 2016 The purpose of the 
update is to validate and incorporate new information into the plan and identify progress that has 
been made since the last approval of the plan. It should also be noted that an approved HMP is 
required to receive federal assistance under the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) or 
Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) programs. 

 
1.3 Community Profile 
The West Valley Water District is a County Water District, a public agency of the State of 
California, organized and existing under the County Water District Law (Division 12, Section 
30,000 of the Water Code) of the State of California. 

 
For 68 years, the District has faithfully served a significant portion of the City of Rialto’s 
residents. Our current water supply services provide to approximately 51 percent of the City of 
Rialto residents and businesses along with portions of the City of Colton, the City of Fontana, 
Bloomington, Jurupa Valley, and portions of unincorporated San Bernardino and Riverside 
counties. 

 
Today, the District serves 31 square miles (20,000 acres) with an additional 3,300 acres in its 
sphere of influence and over 21,000 service connections serving approximately 90,000 
customers. The District currently retains 86 employees.  

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 25



7  

 
  
1.3.1 Physical Setting 
Located about 60 miles east of the Pacific Ocean, the District is located in the San Bernardino 
Valley. The Valley is approximately 50 miles long from west to east; contains about 480 square 
miles; and is bordered on the west by the Chino, Puente and San Jose Hills, and on the north by 
the San Gabriel and San Bernardino Mountains. The Valley region is defined as all the area 
within the County that is south and west of the Forest Service boundaries. The San Bernardino 
range trending southeast forms the eastern limit of the Valley, along with the Yucaipa and 
Crafton Hills. The southern limits of the Valley are marked by alluvial highlands extending south 
from the San Bernardino and the Jurupa Mountains. Elevations within the Valley range from 
about 500 feet on the Valley floor to 1,700 feet in Live Oak Canyon, and to about 5,400 feet in 
the Yucaipa Hills. 

 
As shown on Figure 1, the District is located in Southwestern San Bernardino County and 
Northern Riverside County, within the San Bernardino Valley. The District’s service includes 
portions of the Cities of Rialto, Fontana, Bloomington, Jurupa Valley, Colton, and 
unincorporated areas in San Bernardino and Riverside Counties. The District lies adjacent to the 
western limits of the City of San Bernardino. The District is composed of two non-contiguous 
areas and is divided into almost equal northern and southern sections by the central portion of the 
City of Rialto. 

 
The District is situated in the San Bernardino Valley which is an arid desert region surrounded 
by mountains. The District experiences warm summers and mild winters. The average summer 
daytime high temperature is 90°F and the average winter nighttime low is 40°F. The rainy 
season occurs December through April, and the mean annual precipitation for the City of San 
Bernardino is approximately 16.37 inches. 

 
The District receives its water supply from local surface water collected from Lytle Creek, 
imported water from the State Water Project (SWP), and groundwater wells. Per the District’s 
Public Water System Statistics, of the water supplied within the distribution system, the current 
mix is 45% groundwater, 18% surface water and 19% purchased imported water. The District 
receives nearly all of its groundwater from five groundwater basins (Bunker Hill, Lytle Creek, 
Rialto-Colton, Chino, and North Riverside) located within the Santa Ana Basin Watershed. 

 
1.3.2 History 
The District was formed in 1952 under the name “Bloomington County Water District” which 
was changed to “Semi-Tropic County Water District” in 1959, then to West San Bernardino 
County Water District in 1961, and to its present name, West Valley Water District in 2003. 
The District initially covered an area of approximately one square mile and served only 
domestic water. During the 1960s, '70s, and '80s, the District expanded to include other smaller 
water companies such as Citizens Land and Water Company, Lytle Creek Water, Crestmore 
Village Water Company, and Fontana Ranchos Company. 

 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 26



8  

 
 
Figure 1:  District Service Area  
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 27



9  

 
During this growth period, the District engaged in several large construction projects to achieve 
the following goals: 

 
• To improve existing water systems 
• To expand its distribution system 
• To build a pipeline from water located near San Bernardino 

 
The District also increased the number of reservoirs, wells, and pump stations to accommodate 
the growth. Some of these projects were joint projects with other neighboring agencies. 

 
1.3.3 Demographics 

The District’s service area contains approximately 20,000 acres (31 square miles) and currently 
serves approximately 90,000 people.  

 
According to San Bernardino, CA data in 2020, the race and ethnicity makeup for the population 
included the following: 

 
• Hispanic - 54% 
• White – 27.8% 
• Black – 7.83% 
• Asian - 7% 
• Multirace - 2% 
• American Indian - <1% 

1.3.4 Existing Land Use 
The ultimate demand allocation was generated from the latest land use planning maps from the 
City of Rialto, the City of Fontana, the City of Colton, and the Counties of San Bernardino and 
Riverside and from conversations with city and county personnel. After obtaining all the land 
use maps, the combined land uses from the various cities and counties were combined to show 
only the District boundaries. 

 
As shown on Figure 2, the existing land use for the District’s planning area.  The land uses 
consist primarily of industrial, rural residential, medium residential, and open space in the south 
system. For the north system, the primary land uses are medium residential, planned community 
residential, and special study area. 

 
The growth in the District has primarily been in the northwestern section of the District, which 
contained areas of generally undeveloped land. Several residential and commercial sites were 
developed in that area. The growth in the northwestern section has increased hazard events in 
the planning area.  The main source of supply in the northwestern section is one groundwater 
well.  Due to drought, the groundwater levels have dropped significantly.  The water production 
from the well used to be 1,000 gallons per minute back in 2015 and dropped to 750 gallons per 
minute in 2021.  The northwestern section has been identified as high fire hazard severity zone. 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 28



10  

 
 

Figure 2:  Existing Land Use in District’s Service Area 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 29



11  

Figure 3:  Future Land Use in District Service Area 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 30



12  

 
 

1.3.5 Development Trends 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 31



13  

Table 1: Projected Growth in Total Number of Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDUs) 

 
 

Year 
Percent Of 

Growth/Year 
Total Number Of 

EDUs 
2020 4.0% 32,094 
2021 3.9% 33,377 
2022 3.7% 34,679 
2023 3.6% 95,927 
2024 0.5% 36,107 

  Ultimate   49,736  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 32



14  

Section 2: Plan Adoption  
 
2.1 Adoption by Local Governing Body 
Adoption of the HMP by the local governing body demonstrates the District’s commitment to 
meeting mitigation goals and objectives.  Governing body approval legitimizes the plan and 
authorizes responsible agencies to execute their responsibilities.  The West Valley Water District 
Board of Directors must adopt the HMP before the HMP can receive final approval from FEMA. 
 
2.2 Promulgation Authority 
The five-member Board of Directors consists of members within the community. The District 
has five separate voting districts within its service area. The Board of Directors serves four-year 
terms, with terms overlapping. The Board of Directors develops the policies that govern the 
District. The District’s General Manager is appointed by the Board of Directors and oversees the 
day-to-day operations of the District. 

 
The public is invited to join the District’s Board meetings, which are held at 6:00 pm on the first 
and third Thursdays of each month at the District office. 
 

 
2.3  Primary Point of Contact 
The Point of Contact for information regarding this plan is: 

 
Joanne Chan 
Director of Operations 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line, P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
(909) 820-3707  
jchan@wvwd.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.4 Record of Changes 

Each revision or correction to this annex must be recorded. The record contains the date, 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 33

mailto:jchan@wvwd.org


15  

location, and brief description of change, as well as who requested or performed such 
change. 

 
Once corrections have been made and all affected parties notified of such correction, the type 
of correction and how it impacts the document will be forwarded to the planning team for 
approval at the next planning meeting. The correction will remain temporarily in effect 
within the annex until such time that the planning team can officially approve or deny such 
correction. 

 
Table 2: Record Change 

 

Date Section/Page Description of Change Changed By 
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

 Section 3: Planning Process 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 34



16  

The purpose of this section is to document the planning process that was taken to review. A 
comprehensive description of the planning process not only informs citizens and other readers 
about how the plan was developed, but also provides a permanent record of how decisions were 
reached so it can be replicated or adapted in future updates. An integral part of the planning 
process is documentation of how the public was engaged through the process.  

 
This update process was done by the Planning Team consisted of members within the District 
who have a vested interest and were appropriate for the level of knowledge required for the 
HMP.  The Planning Team used the four-step planning approach outlined in the FEMA 
publication, Developing the Mitigation Plan:  Identifying Mitigation Actions and Implementing 
Strategies (FEMA 386-3) was used to develop this plan: 

• Develop mitigation goals and objectives – The risk assessment (hazard characteristics, 
inventory, and findings), along with municipal policy documents, were utilized to 
develop mitigation goals and objectives. 

• Identify and prioritize mitigation actions – Based on the risk assessment, goals and 
objectives, existing literature/resources, and input from participating entities, mitigation 
activities were identified for each hazard. 

• Prepare implementation strategy – High priority activities are recommended for 
implementation first. However, based on community needs and goals, project costs, and 
available funding, some medium or low priority activities may be implemented before 
some high priority items. 

• Document mitigation planning process - The mitigation planning process is 
documented throughout this plan. 

 
The Planning Team, general public, and external agencies all served as stakeholders with opportunity to 
contribute to the plan during the Plan Writing Phase of the planning process. 
 
3.1 Preparing for the Plan 
The District’s Planning Team met on March 2, 2021 to determine which sections of the plan 
needed to be updated. Once the Planning Team had reviewed this document and added any new 
hazard and mitigation program information. 

 
The update process consisted of: 

 
• Confirm planning goals 
• Prepare timeline for HMP update 
• Ensure HMP meets DMA 2000 requirements 
• Organize and solicit involvement of public and external agencies 
• Analyze existing date and report 
• Update hazard information 
• Review HAZUS loss project estimates 
• Create mitigation action items 
• Participate in Planning Team meetings, committee meetings and Board of Directors public 

meeting 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 35



17  

• Provide existing resources including maps and data 
• Documenting actions since 2011 when the HMP was first approved. 

 
The Planning Team consisted of the District’s General Manager, Assistant General Manager, 
Director of General Services, Director of Operations, Production Chief Water Systems Operator, 
and other local water district staff. This team met frequently for the duration of the plan’s 
development. 

 
The Planning Team decided it was appropriate to review and analyze each section of the plan 
(i.e., Planning Process, Risk Assessment, Mitigation Strategy, and Plan Maintenance). 
Therefore, meeting agendas were set to complete appropriate chapters as necessary. Once the 
planning team reviewed each chapter along with new hazard or mitigation program 
information, recommendations were presented for public review and input. 
 
Figure 4:  Planning Phases Timeline 
 

Planning Phases Timeline 
Plan Writing Phase 

(First & Second Draft 
Plan) 

• Planning Team input – research, meetings, writing, review of First Draft Plan 
to CalOES. 

• Incorporated input from the Planning Team and Cal OES into Second Draft 
Plan 

• Conduct Stakeholder Workshop for external agencies providing hazard 
overview and information about the HMP planning process. 

• Incorporate input into the Third Draft Plan 
Plan Review 
Phase(Third & Final 
Draft Plan) 

• Send Third Draft Plan to Cal OES and FEMA for approval pending 
adoption. 

• Address any mandated revisions identified by Cal OES and FEMA 
into Final Draft Plan.  

Plan Adoption 
Phase (Final Draft 
Plan) 

• Incorporate input into the Board of Directors staff report. 
• Post public notice of Board of Directors meeting. 
• Final Draft Plan distributed to Board of Directors in advance of 

meeting. 
• Present Final Draft Plan to the Board of Directors for Adoption. 

Plan Approval 
Phase (Final Plan) 

• Submit proof of Board Adoption to FEMA along with request for 
final approval. 

• Incorporate FEMA Final Letter of Approval into the Final Plan. 
Plan 
Implementation 
Phase 

• Conduct annual Planning Team meetings. 
• Integrate mitigation action items into budget and other funding and 

strategic documents. 
• Implement mitigation action items. 

 
 
 
 
3.1.1 Planning Team 

 
The 2021 HMP Planning Team for the District was compiled, authored, and reviewed by the 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 36



18  

following members: 
 

Rickey S. Manbahal, MPA, General Manager 
 
Description of Involvement: Rickey has an excellent working knowledge of the District and 
assisted the planning team in identifying potential and past hazards, completing the vulnerability 
assessment, and suggesting specific projects for possible mitigation. As General Manager, he 
was also able to get tasks done efficiently for the HMP. He assembled the planning team and 
coordinated the team meetings. The General Manager will be instrumental in supporting the 
development, maintenance, and implementation of the HMP, including the mitigation actions.  
Support will include providing funding and staff.  

 
Contact Information: 
West Valley Water District 
855 West Base Line, P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
Office (909) 820-3706  
smanbahal@wvwd.org. 

 

Van Jew, Assistant General Manager 
 
Description of Involvement: Van was hired as Assistant General Manager in December 2020 and 
brings with him a tremendous working knowledge of the region and regional planning strategies. 
He has been involved with the planning team and a key source of direction in the planning 
process since March 2021.  Van oversees the management of capital improvement projects, 
water resource management, the District’s Master Plans for water and water supplies, and all 
engineering and planning work.  Van actively participates in regional water planning committees.   

 

Joanne Chan, Director of Operations 
 

Description of Involvement: Joanne has a background and extensive training in Emergency 
Management as well as a good working knowledge of the district’s facilities and the production 
and storage of water, water treatment, and distribution system operations and maintenance 
within the district and has 18 years’ experience in district operations. Joanne will be handling the 
collection of information and input from the planning team and the updating of the plan. 

 
Jon Stephenson, Director of General Services 

 
Description of involvement: Jon was brought into the planning team to assist with the 
information technologies (IT) and general services with the District and our planning efforts. 
Jon started with the District as of November 2005 and has been with the WVWD for 16 years.  
Jon provides comprehensive technology planning, development, integration, operation, 
maintenance, and support to all areas of the District to maximize efficiency.   

 
 

Joe Schaack, Production Chief Water Systems Operator 
Description of involvement: Joe oversees the Production Division.  Joe’s responsibilities 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 37



19  

include operation and maintenance of 17 groundwater wells, 12 booster stations, and 25 
reservoirs.  Additionally, Joe is also responsible for electrical and instrumentation.  Joe started 
with the District as of May 2003 and has 18 years of services in the industry. 
Traci Brown, Field Operations Specialist II 
Description of involvement:  Traci was brought into the Operations Division November 2011.  
Traci’s duties include assisting the Operations Manager and all field Supervisor and Chiefs 
with administrative projects.  Traci has worked at the District for 20 years and has a 
background in Customer Service and is the liaison with several interested parties. 
 
3.2 Coordination with Other Jurisdictions, Agencies, and Organizations 
A copy of the plan had been given to several external agencies for review and comment. The 
Planning Team did not receive inputs from these agencies to incorporate into the HMP. A 
electronic copy was sent to San Bernardino County OES for review. 

 
 
3.3  Public Involvement/Outreach 
A copy of the plan was posted on District’s website (www.wvwd.org) for review and included 
instructions and a link for questions or comments.  Social media posts and bill inserts were used 
to encourage public involvement.   

 
3.4  Assess the Risk and Hazard 

 
This HMP has been developed through an extensive review of available information on hazards, the District’s 
2020 Emergency Response Plan, the District’s 2020 Water Master Plan, the District’s 2015 Urban Water 
Management Plan, engineering drawings, and available geotechnical and geologic data both from the District 
and outside sources.  Go to https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/ to view District’s plans.  Outside sources 
such as UCERF- 3, and California Geological Survey for detailed fault investigation reports were used.  Links 
to UCERF3: A New Earthquake Forecast for California’s Complex Fault System 
https://pubs.usgs.gov/fs/2015/3009/; Earthquake Hazards from United States Geological Survey  
https://www.usgs.gov/natural-hazards/earthquake-hazards/earthquakes; California Earthquake Authority 
https://www.earthquakeauthority.com/; California Department of Conservation  
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs; U.S. Drought Monitor 
https://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/data/pdf/current/current_ca_trd.pdf 

 
The Planning Team evaluated any newly identified hazards that have been determined to pose a 
threat. The existing hazards were reviewed and if new occurrences of existing hazards were 
available, they were incorporated into this section.  Certain members of the planning team were 
assigned various hazards to describe occurrences of the hazards not included in the previously 
approved plan, and research new occurrences of existing hazards. The research also included 
historical records, or hazard data related to profiling hazards, such as National Flood Insurance 
Program (NFIP) maps or studies, HAZUS studies, or reports from other Federal or State agencies 
that describe location, extent, probability, or previous occurrences of hazards. 
 
3.5 Set Goals 
The process of identifying mitigation goals began with a review and validation of the Goals and 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 38

http://www.wvwd.org/
https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/
https://pubs.usgs.gov/fs/2015/3009/
https://www.usgs.gov/natural-hazards/earthquake-hazards/earthquakes
https://www.earthquakeauthority.com/
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs
https://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/data/pdf/current/current_ca_trd.pdf


20  

Objectives in the District’s 2021 HMP. Using the 2011 HMP as the basis, the District’s planning 
team completed an assessment/discussion of whether each of the mitigation goals was still valid. 
This discussion also led to the opportunity to identify new Goals and Objectives. 

 
The goals for the 2021 HMP were set by the Planning Team for the District because the members 
of the team knew the goals of the District with respect to its mission “to economically protect, 
safeguard, and deliver to our customers’ water at the lowest, reasonable price.” 

 
At one of our planning team meetings, the team brainstormed to determine the best mitigation 
goals to reduce or avoid long-term vulnerabilities to the identified hazards. First, the team 
reviewed the 2011 HMP goals and discussed the changes in our community since the previous 
plan was approved. Then the team decided whether those goals had been met or if they were still 
consistent with the District’s current conditions. 
 
3.6  Review and Propose Mitigation Measures 
The process of identifying mitigation measures began with a review and validation of previous 
mitigation measures in the District’s 2021 HMP. Using the 2011 HMP as the basis, the 
District’s planning team completed an assessment/discussion of whether each of the mitigation 
measures was still valid. This discussion also led to the opportunity to identify new mitigation 
measures. 

 
The District’s Planning Team proposed and reviewed the mitigation measures because they 
knew the District’s mission. During one of our planning team meetings, we reviewed each of the 
projects from the draft 2011 HMP and discussed the status of each project and the reasons for 
why they had or had not been implemented and if we wanted to include them on the list for the 
2021 HMP. 
The Planning Team identified and analyzed a range of specific mitigation actions and projects 
to be considered to reduce the effects of each hazard, with particular emphasis on new and 
existing water facilities. The Planning Team also formed an action plan describing how the 
mitigation projects identified should be prioritized and implemented. Special consideration was 
given to the costs and the cost benefits of the proposed projects. 

 
The District’s implementation strategy included identifying a set of first tier objectives. These 
objectives are considered the highest priority and once implemented will result in substantial 
improvement in the overall reliability of the system. 

 
Meetings were held with the Planning Team to solicit their input and review sections of the 
HMP. Each meeting focused on specific sections from the 2021 HMP, including the 
Introduction, Participation Information, Planning Process and Public Involvement, Risk 
Assessment, Mitigation Strategy, and Plan Maintenance. 
 

 
 

 
3.7  Draft the Hazard Mitigation Plan 
The 2021 HMP had been reviewed by the planning team, the general public and neighboring 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 39



21  

agencies, no public comments were received.  The public review period was from April 27, 
2021 to June 11, 2021.  Any updates to the plan related to the process are documented in 
Appendix A. 

 
3.8  Adopt the Plan 
 
September 2021 

 
Section 4: Risk Assessment 

 

 
The goal of mitigation is to reduce the future impacts of a hazard including the health and safety 
of employees, property damage, disruption to local and regional economies, and the amount of 
public and private funds spent to assist with recovery. However, mitigation should be based on 
risk assessment. 

 
The purpose of this section is to describe the methodology taken to understand the hazards in the 
District’s service area. There are generally four (4) steps in this process: 1) identify and screen 
the hazards; 2) profile the hazards; 3) inventory the assets; and 4) estimate losses. 

 
A risk assessment involves measuring the potential loss from a hazard event by assessing the 
vulnerability of buildings, infrastructure, and people. It identifies the characteristics and 
potential consequences of hazards, how much of the District could be affected by a hazard, and 
the impact on District assets. A risk assessment consists of three components: hazard 
identification, vulnerability analysis, and risk analysis. Technically, these are three different 
items, but the terms are sometimes used interchangeably. 

 
4.1 Hazard Identification 

 
4.1.1 Hazard Screening Criteria 
The intent of screening the hazards is to help prioritize which hazard creates the greatest concern 
to the District. The process that was implemented is logical and can be universally applied. 

 
For this 2021 HMP Update, the District is utilizing a numerical ranking system for the 
hazard screening process. 

 
A list of the natural hazards to consider was obtained from Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) Comprehensive Preparedness Guide (CPG) 201 and local history. The 
District’s planning team reviewed each hazard on the list and using their experience with the 
hazards, the following conclusions were drawn. 

Hazards considered by the District’s planning team include the following: Drought; 

Earthquake; Flooding; Wildfire; Terrorism; Windstorms; Climate Change 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 40



22  

4.1.2 Hazard Assessment Matrix 
For this 2021 HMP, the District is utilizing a numerical ranking system for the hazard screening 
process. This process consists of generating a numerical ranking rating for the probability and 
impact of each screened hazard. The first part of the risk assessment is an analysis of the overall 
risk for each hazard with a tool called the Calculated priority Risk Index (CPRI).  The CPRI value 
is obtained by assigning a numerical ranking to each of four hazard characteristics, then 
calculating an index value based on a weighting scheme.  The characteristics, definitions of 
rankings and weighting scheme are presented below.  It is not a 100% accurate methodology; 
however, it offers a platform for discussion so that the planning team can make a more informed 
determination on the ranking of each hazard. 

 
Table 3: Hazard Assessment Screening Matrix – Calculated Priority Risk Index  

 
Characteristic 

Ranking Definition 
Probability*  
4 - Highly Likely Event is probably within the calendar year 

Event has up to 1 in 1 year change of occurring (1/1=100%) 
History of events is greater than 33% likely per year 
Event is “Highly Likely” to occur 

3 - Likely Event is probable within the next three years 
Event has up to 1 in 3 years chance of occurring (1/3=33%) 
History of events is greater than 20% but less than or equal to 33% likely per year 
Event is “Likely” to occur 

2 – Possible Event is probable within the next five years 
Event has up to 1 in 5 years chance of occurring (1/5=20%) 
History of events is greater than 10% but less than or equal to 20% likely per year 
Event could “Possibly” occur. 

1 - Unlikely Event is possible within the next 10 years 
Event has up to 1 in 10 years chance of occurring (1/10=10%) 
History of events is less than or equal to 10% likely per year 
Event is “Unlikely” 

Magnitude/Severity** 
4 – Catastrophic Multiple deaths 

Complete shutdown of facilities for 30 or more days 
More than 50% of property is severely damaged 

3 - Critical Injuries and/or illnesses result in permanent disability 
Complete shutdown of critical facilities for at least two weeks 
25-50% of property is severely damaged 

2 - Limited Injuries and/or illnesses do not result in permanent disability 
Complete shutdown of critical facilities for more than one week 
10-25% of property is severely damaged 

1- Negligible  Injuries and/or illnesses are treatable with first aid 
Minor quality of life lost 
Shutdown of critical facilities and services for 24 hours or less 
Less than 10% of property is severely  

Warning Time 
4 
3 
2 
1 

Less than 6 Hours 
6-12 Hours 
12-24 Hours 
24+ Hours 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 41



23  

Duration 
4 
3 
2 
1 

More Than 1 Week 
Less Than 1 Week 
Less Than 1 Day 
Less Than 6 Hours 

 *Based on history, using the definition given, the likelihood for future events is quantified. 
 **According to the severity associated with past events or the probable worst-case scenario possible in the state. 
 
Using the rankings described in Table 3, the following formula is used to determine each hazard’s 
CPRI. 
(Probability x .45) + (Magnitude/Severity x .30) + (Warning Time x .15) + (Duration x .10) = CPRI 
 
Based on their CPRI, the hazards were separated into three categories of planning significance:  High 
(3.0-4.0), Moderate (2.0-2.95) and Low (1.1-1.95).   
 
4.1.3 Hazard Prioritization 
Using the hazard screening criteria and assessment matrix discussed in the previous two sections, 
the District’s planning team discussed knowledge of natural hazards and past historical events, as 
well as ordinances, and recent planning decisions and determined the following two hazards were 
determined to be the most likely to affect the District: 

 
1. Drought Hazard: A drought could impact 100% of the District’s population because 

water is the business of the District. If there is less water to sell, the District receives less 
revenue. 

2. Earthquake Hazard: There are several active faults within a few miles of the District’s 
service area. These faults could potentially damage 100% of the District’s critical 
facilities. 

 
Table 4: Calculated Priority Risk Index Ranking for West Valley Water District 

 

Hazard 

Pr
ob

ab
ili

ty
 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
45

%
 (x

.4
5)

 

M
ag

ni
tu

de
 

Se
ve

ri
ty

 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
30

%
 (x

.3
) 

W
ar

ni
ng

 
T

im
e 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
15

%
 (x

15
) 

D
ur

at
io

n 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
10

%
 (x

.1
) 

C
PR

I T
ot

al
 

Earthquake  3 1.35 4 1.2 4 0.6 1 0.1 3.25 
Flooding 3 1.35 2 0.6 1 0.15 3 0.3 2.40 
Wildfire 3 1.35 2 0.6 1 0.15 3 0.3 2.40 
Windstorms 2 0.9 1 0.3 1 0.15 1 0.1 1.45 
Drought 4 1.80 3 0.9 1 0.15 4 0.4 3.25 
Terrorism 2 0.9 4 1.2 1 0.15 4 0.4 2.65 
Climate Change 
(Extreme Weather 
Events) 

2 0.9 4 1.2 1 0.15 4 0.4 2.65 

 

The two high profile hazards for the District are drought and earthquake. While other hazards 
are profiled in the following sections for completeness, the District’s priority and focus for the 
mitigation projects will be for only the two high profile hazards. 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 42



24  

4.2 Hazard Profiles 
4.2.1 Drought Hazard 
The following section describes the hazard and then details the historical events associated with 
this hazard for the West Valley Water District. 

 
General Definition: A drought is a period of drier-than-normal conditions that results in water- 
related problems. Precipitation (rain or snow) falls in uneven patterns across the country. When 
no rain or only a small amount of rainfalls, soils can dry out and plants can die. When rainfall is 
less than normal for several weeks, months, or years as we are seeing now with climate change, 
the flow of streams and rivers declines, water levels in lakes and reservoirs fall, and the depth to 
water in wells increases. If dry weather persists and water supply problems develop, the dry 
period can become a drought. The first evidence of drought usually is seen in records of rainfall. 
Within a short period of time, a period of below-normal rainfall does not necessarily result in 
drought conditions. Some areas of the United States are more likely to have droughts than other 
areas. In humid, or wet, regions, a drought of a few weeks is quickly reflected in a decrease in 
soil moisture and in declining flow in streams. In arid, or dry, regions, people rely on 
groundwater and water in reservoirs to supply their needs. They are protected from short-term 
droughts but may have severe problems during long dry periods because they may have no other 
water source if wells or reservoirs go dry. 

 
Description: Because the District is in the business of selling water, drought can be a disastrous 
hazard to the District. A drought is defined as a series of years with less than average rainfall 
and typically lasts seven years. The District is currently experiencing a drought that started in 
2021. 

 
Southern California has a history of severe droughts. There have been six severe extended 
droughts within the last 400 years (the most severe drought lasted from approximately 1650 to 
1700). The U.S. Weather Service is forecasting 20 more years of below average rainfall. 

 
State of California is experiencing extremely dry conditions since 1998 and may continue 
beyond this year and more regularly into the future, based on scientific projections regarding the 
impact of climate change on California's snowpack. The end of 2014 marked three straight years 
of record-breaking dry weather throughout California, with some parts of the State receiving less 
than 65 percent of their normal precipitation. In 2014, State of California experienced record dry 
conditions becoming the driest year on record. California’s water supplies have dipped to 
alarming levels, indicated by snowpack in California's mountains is approximately 20 percent of 
the normal average for this date; California's largest water reservoirs have very low water levels 
for this time of year; California's major river systems, including the Sacramento and San Joaquin 
rivers, have significantly reduced surface water flows; and groundwater levels throughout the 
state have dropped significantly. 

 
The fundamental drought impact to water agencies is a reduction in available water supplies. As 
a result, historic occurrences of drought have encouraged water agencies to review the reliability 
of their water supplies and to initiate planning programs addressing identified needs for 
improvement.  The District took multiple groundwater wells offline due to drop in water levels.   
In addition, public and media interest in droughts fosters heightened awareness of water supply 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 43



25  

reliability issues in the Legislature. More than 50 drought-related legislative proposals were 
introduced during the severe, but brief 1976-77 drought. About one-third of these eventually 
became law. Similar activity on drought-related legislative proposals was observed during the 
1987-92 drought. One of the most significant pieces of legislation was the 1991 amendment to 
the Urban Water Management and Planning Act, in effect since 1983, which requires water 
suppliers to estimate available water supplies at the end of one, two, and three years, and to 
develop contingency plans for shortages of up to 50 percent. The District’s 2015 Urban Water 
Management Plan (UWMP) presents water supply to demand comparisons through 2035. The 
2015 UWMP will require all water agencies to reduce their water demand by 20 percent by the 
year 2020. The plan also presents water supply to demand comparisons for single dry to multiple 
dry year scenarios. The comparisons show that the District has adequate supply through 2035. 

 
In Addition, On May 6, 2015 the State Water Resources Control Board adopted new mandates 
per the Governor’s Order that was issued on April 1, 2015 in light of the continued State of 
Drought Emergency. The following actions are prohibited: 

• Water runoff is not allowed. This means sprinklers must be adjusted so your sidewalks 
and driveways do not get watered too! 

• When washing a vehicle with a hose, you must use a hose nozzle that will automatically 
shut the water off if the hose is set down. 

• Washing down hard surfaces with a hose. In other words, use a broom to clean your 
patio, driveway and sidewalk. 

• All fountains and other water features must have a recirculating pump. 
• Irrigation must be done between 8 pm and 6 am. 
• Irrigation may not occur within 48 hours after measurable rain. 
• All restaurants and food establishments cannot serve water to their customers unless 

specifically requested by the customer. 
• The irrigation of ornamental turf on public street medians. 
• The irrigation of landscapes outside of newly constructed homes and buildings in a 

manner inconsistent with regulations or other requirements established by the California 
Building Standards Commission. 

• Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of choosing not to 
have towels and linens laundered daily and prominently display notice of this option. 

 
The Governor’s Executive order also directed the State Water Resources Control Board to 
mandate all water agencies to achieve a certain percentage reduction to help the State achieve an 
overall 25% reduction in urban use. With the methodology of the State Board, the District is 
required to achieve a 28% reduction to be in compliance.   
 
If the current drought extends for the period that the U.S. Weather Service is currently 
forecasting, the District will have difficulty in meeting its water supply demands without 
additional supplies. The District receives its water supply from three sources:  local 
groundwater, local Lytle Creek surface flows, and imported water from northern California, 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 44



26  

which is purchased from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District and Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency. The District pumps groundwater from five groundwater basins:  Lytle 
Creek Basin, Bunker Hill Basin, Rialto Colton Basin, Chino Basin and North Riverside Basin. 
Lytle Creek surface flows and these groundwater basins would experience significant loss of 
production over and above the significant loss of production that the District is currently 
experiencing. The Bunker Hill groundwater basin is experiencing the lowest groundwater levels 
in 40 years. If the North Riverside groundwater basin is utilized extensively, it should also 
experience significant drops in water levels.  Additionally, within the past 5 years the 
contaminant levels in some groundwater wells have elevated to a point above the regulated 
limits set by the State Water Resources Control Board, which the District has either added 
source treatment, applied for blending plans, or took these wells out of service. 
Table 5: Drought History 
Summarizes the occurrences, impact, and costs of this hazard. 

 
 

Date of 
Event 

Type 
of Damage 

Amount 
of Damage 

Statewide 
or Local 

1976-1977 
Annual statewide 

runoff dropped 21% 
below average. 

 
       1976-$888.5M; 1977-$1.775M     Various 

 
 
 
1987-1992 

Annual statewide 
runoff dropped 

27% below 
average. Twenty- 
three counties had 

declared local 
drought 

emergencies by the 
end of 1991. 

SWP terminated services to agricultural 
contractors and provided only 10% of 

requested urban deliveries.  Appropriate 
$34.8M from the General Fund to the 

Department for financial assistance to local 
water suppliers for emergency drought- 

relief water supply, technical water 
conservation assistance, and operation of 

the Department's Drought Information 
Center. 

 
 
   
    Various 

1998-2000 

San Bernardino 
National Forest - 
dead and dying 

trees, bark beetle 
infestations. 

$12,100 crop damage.     Various 

 
 
2012-2016 

Water supply 
losses and fallen 

agriculture; 
affected urban and 

agricultural 
economies 

$10 billion      Various 

2021- 
current 

NOAA expects the 
spring drought to 

hit 74 million 
people 

To be determined      Various 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 45



27  

 
Summarizing Risk 

 
Probability: Event is highly likely to occur 

• Event is probable within the calendar year 
• Event has up to 1 in 1 year chance of occurring (1/1=100%) 
• History of events is greater than 33% likely year 

 
Impact: Critical 

• Impacts that not quantified, but can be anticipated in future 
events such as injury and loss of life, disruption of and damage 
to public infrastructure, significant economic impact (jobs, sales, 
tax revenue) upon the community, negative impact on 
commercial and residential property values, and uncontrolled 
fires and associated injuries and damaged.  

 
       As of April 2021, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 5:  Drought History 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 46



28  

 
 
The drought severity classification table shows the ranges for each indicator for each dryness level. 
Because the ranges of the various indicators often don't coincide, the final drought category tends to be 
based on what the majority of the indicators show and on local observations. The analysts producing 
the map also weigh the indices according to how well they perform in various parts of the country and 
at different times of the year. Additional indicators are often needed in the West, where winter snowfall 
in the mountains has a strong bearing on water supplies. It is this combination of the best available data, 
local observations and experts’ best judgment that makes the U.S. Drought Monitor more versatile than 
other drought indicators. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 47



29  

 

The Drought Monitor map identifies areas of drought and labels them by intensity. D1 is the least 
intense level and D4 the most intense. Drought is defined as a moisture deficit bad enough to have 
social, environmental or economic effects.  D0 areas are not in drought, but are experiencing 
abnormally dry conditions that could turn into drought or are recovering from drought but are not yet 
back to normal.  The District’s planning area located within the green boundary in December 2000 was 
not affected by drought.   

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 48



30  

 
 

 
The Drought Monitor map identifies areas of drought and labels them by intensity. D1 is the least 
intense level and D4 the most intense. Drought is defined as a moisture deficit bad enough to have 
social, environmental or economic effects.  D0 areas are not in drought, but are experiencing 
abnormally dry conditions that could turn into drought or are recovering from drought but are not yet 
back to normal.  The District’s planning area located within the green boundary in December 2013 was 
listed as moderate drought and severe drought. 

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 49



31  

 
 
 
The Drought Monitor map identifies areas of drought and labels them by intensity. D1 is the least 
intense level and D4 the most intense. Drought is defined as a moisture deficit bad enough to have 
social, environmental or economic effects.  D0 areas are not in drought, but are experiencing 
abnormally dry conditions that could turn into drought or are recovering from drought but are not yet 
back to normal.  The District’s planning area located within the green boundary in December 2015 was 
listed as D3 extreme drought. 

 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 50



32  

 

 
 
The Drought Monitor map identifies areas of drought and labels them by intensity. D1 is the least 
intense level and D4 the most intense. Drought is defined as a moisture deficit bad enough to have 
social, environmental or economic effects.  D0 areas are not in drought, but are experiencing 
abnormally dry conditions that could turn into drought or are recovering from drought but are not yet 
back to normal.  The District’s planning area located within the green boundary in December 2017 was 
listed abnormally dry and moderate drought. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 51



33  

 
 
 
The Drought Monitor map identifies areas of drought and labels them by intensity. D1 is the least 
intense level and D4 the most intense. Drought is defined as a moisture deficit bad enough to have 
social, environmental or economic effects.  D0 areas are not in drought, but are experiencing 
abnormally dry conditions that could turn into drought or are recovering from drought but are not yet 
back to normal.  The District’s planning area located within the green boundary in December 2020 was 
listed moderate drought and severe drought. 

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 52



34  

 
The figure above shows fluctuations in drought conditions within the San Bernardino County over the 
past 20 years and show that a significant drought has occurred about four times over that time span.  
The U.S. Drought Monitor (USDM) relies on drought experts to synthesize the best available data and 
work the local observes to interpret the information.  The USDM also incorporates ground truthing and 
information about how drought is affecting people, via a network of more than 450 observes across the 
county, including state climatologists, National Weather Service staff, Extension agents, and 
hydrologists. 
 
4.2.2 Earthquake Hazard 
The following section describes the hazard and then details the historical events associated with 
this hazard for the District. 

 
An earthquake is a sudden, rapid shaking of the Earth caused by the breaking and shifting of 
rock beneath the Earth's surface. For hundreds of millions of years, the forces of plate tectonics 
have shaped the Earth as the huge plates that form the Earth's surface move slowly over, under, 
and past each other. Sometimes the movement is gradual. At other times, the plates are locked 
together, unable to release the accumulating energy. When the accumulated energy grows 
strong enough, the plates break free causing the ground to shake. Most earthquakes occur at the 
boundaries where the plates meet; however, some earthquakes occur in the middle of plates. 
Ground shaking from earthquakes can collapse buildings and bridges; disrupt gas, electric, water 
utilities, and phone service; and sometimes trigger landslides, avalanches, flash floods, fires, and 
huge, destructive ocean waves (tsunamis). Buildings with foundations resting on unconsolidated 
landfill and other unstable soil, and trailers and homes not tied to their foundations are at risk 
because they can be shaken off their mountings during an earthquake. When an earthquake 
occurs in a populated area, it may cause deaths and injuries and extensive property damage. 

 
Earthquakes strike suddenly, without warning. Earthquakes can occur at any time of the year and 
at any time of the day or night. On a yearly basis, 70 to 75 damaging earthquakes occur 
throughout the world. Estimates of losses from a future earthquake in the United States approach 
$200 billion. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 53



35  

 
 

 
 

There are 45 states and territories in the United States at moderate to very high risk from 
earthquakes, and they are located in every region of the country. California experiences the most 
frequent damaging earthquakes; however, Alaska experiences the greatest number of large 
earthquakes—most located in uninhabited areas. The largest earthquakes felt in the United States 
were along the New Madrid Fault in Missouri, where a three-month long series of quakes from 
1811 to 1812 included three quakes larger than a magnitude of 8 on the Richter Scale. These 
earthquakes were felt over the entire Eastern United States, with Missouri, Tennessee, Kentucky, 
Indiana, Illinois, Ohio, Alabama, Arkansas, and Mississippi experiencing the strongest ground 
shaking. 

 
There are two large earthquake faults located within several miles of the District’s service area. 
They are the San Andreas southern fault and the San Jacinto fault.  The San Andreas fault is the 
primary feature of the system and the longest fault in California that can cause powerful 
earthquakes, as big as magnitude 8.  A large part of the region’s population lives within 50 miles 
of the San Andreas fault and could be exposed to very strong levels of ground shaking in a major 
earthquake.  Many other faults, such as the San Jacinto fault, create smaller, yet more frequent 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 54



36  

earthquakes.  Soils in lowland areas away from major faults may be subject to liquefaction.  
Houses on liquefied soil may settle or even move laterally on gentle slopes.  Landslides are 
possible on steep slopes. 

 
While there have been many earthquakes in and around the District’s service area, only one 
earthquake has actually caused any damages to the District’s facilities. In 1992, the Big Bear 
Landers Earthquake damaged two of the District’s groundwater wells. Wells 11 and 34 had their 
filter gravel packs damaged. 

 
A source for the earthquake profile was the new earthquake rupture forecast for California 
developed by the Working Group on California Earthquake Probabilities WGCEP. The Working 
Group was organized in September, 2005, by the U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), the California 
Geological Survey (CGS), and the Southern California Earthquake Center (SCEC). The group 
produced a revised the Uniform California Earthquake Rupture Forecast 2015 (UCERF-3). 

 
Appendix B presents the earthquake profile findings for the District’s service area. The ground 
motion findings indicate the peak ground acceleration (PGA) within the District’s service area 
could potentially exceed 80 percent. Typically, any acceleration over 3 percent is considered 
excessive. Also, a map shown in Appendix B illustrates that there is a 97% probability that 
Southern California will have a 6.7 scale earthquake over the next 30 years. 

 
Since 2010, the District has had no damages to facilities resulting from earthquakes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 55



37  

Table 6: Earthquake History 
Summarizes the occurrences, impact, and costs of this hazard. 

 
Earthquake 

Name 
Date of 

Earthquake 
Magnitude 
of Quake 

 
Damage Description 

Wrightwood 
Earthquake Dec. 8, 1812        7.5 40 deaths. 

   Cajon Pass July 22, 
1899        5.7 Landslides, heavy damage to buildings in San 

Bernardino. No deaths. 

   San Jacinto 
 

Dec. 25 
1899 

      6.5 
San Jacinto & Hemet had severe damage. Six 

deaths. Chimneys thrown down and walls 
cracked in Riverside. 

      Elsinore May 15, 
1910         6 Chimney’s toppled. 

   San Jacinto     April 21, 
1918       6.8 

Most damage in San Jacinto and Hemet. 
Several injuries, one death. Landslides, cracks 

in ground, roads, and canals. 

North San   
Jacinto 

     July 22, 
1923       6.3 

Chimney’s toppled, broken windows, 2 critical 
injuries, no deaths, San Bernardino hospital 

and Hall of Records badly damaged. 
 

San Jacinto 
Terwilliger 

 
March 25, 

1937 
      6.0 

Few chimneys damaged, some plaster cracked, 
a few windows broken. Minimal damage 

mostly due to sparsely populated area. 
Fish Creek 
Mountains Oct 21, 1942        6.6 Little damage due to remote location, felt over 

a large area. Rockslides 
 

Desert Hot 
Springs 

 

Dec 4, 1948       6.0 

Widespread damage. In Los Angeles, 5,800-
gallon water tank split, water pipes broken in 
Pasadena, at UCLA, and San Diego. Walls 

cracked in Escondido and Corona. 
1954 San 
Jacinto 

March 19, 
1954        6.4 Minor widespread damage. Parts of San 

Bernardino experienced a temporary blackout. 

Borrego 
Mountain 

April 8, 
1968      6.5 

Largest most damaging earthquake in 16 
years. Damage across most of Southern 

California. Landslides, huge boulders thrown. 
 
  Lytle Creek 

Sept. 12, 
        1970 

 
      5.2 

Landslides, rock falls, 4 injuries, San 
Bernardino radio station knocked off the air. 

 
White Wash 

 
Feb 25, 1980 

 
      5.5 

Landslides. Windows and dishes broken. Fire 
broke out in Rancho Mirage due to a gas line 

rupture in an empty home. 
North Palm      

Springs July 8, 1986       5.6 29 injuries. Destruction or damage of 51 
homes. Landslides. Damage over $4M. 

 
 
     Upland 
 

 
June 26, 

1988 and 
Feb 28, 
1990 

 
 
4.7 and 5.4 
respectively 

Landslides, damage to San Antonio Dam, 38 
minor injuries. Public-$4.87M; business- 

$4.7M; private-$2,4M; total-$12M; 501 
homes and 115 businesses damaged or 
destroyed. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 56



38  

 
   Joshua Tree April 22, 

1992          6.1 32 minor injuries. 

    Big Bear June 
28,1992 

2 separate 
earthquakes – 
Big Bear - 
6.4, Landers – 
7.3. 

Landslides in San Bernardino Mountains. 
Substantial damage in Big Bear. Landers was 

the largest earthquake in southern California in 
40 years. Earthquake ruptured 5 separate 

faults. Total rupture length was 53 miles. One 
death, 402 injuries. Private-$47.5M; business- 
$17M; public-$26.6M; total-$91M; 77 homes 

destroyed, 4,369 homes damaged, 139 
businesses damaged. 

 
Hector Mine 

Oct. 16, 
1999 

 
7.1 

Very remote location. Ruptured in both 
directions from the epicenter. 

Anza June 12, 
2005 5.2          No reports of significant damage. 

Yucaipa  June 16, 
2005 4.9          No reports of significant damage. 

Chino Hills  July 29, 
2008 5.4          No reports of significant damage. 

Ludlow  December 6, 
2008 5.1          No reports of significant damage. 

San 
Bernardino 

January 9, 
2009 4.5          No reports of significant damage. 

Chino Hills March 16, 
2010 4.4          No reports of significant damage. 

El Mayor-
Cucapah  April 4, 2010 7.2 2-4 dead; 100-233 injured; total damage 

estimated at $1.15 billion. 

El Centro  June 15, 
2010 5.7         No reports of significant damage. 

Borrego 
Springs July 7, 2010 5.4         No reports of significant damage. 

Calimesa September 
14, 2011 4.1         No reports of significant damage. 

Fontana January 15, 
2014 4.4         No reports of significant damage. 

Running 
Springs July 5, 2014 4.6         No reports of significant damage. 

Brea March 29, 
2014 5.1        No reports of significant damage. 

South Napa August 24, 
2014 6.0 2 dead; total economic losses estimated at 

$443 million to $800 million. 

Fontana July 25, 
2015 4.2        No reports of significant damage. 

Big Bear Lake September 
16, 2015 4.0        No reports of significant damage. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 57



39  

Muscoy December 
30, 2015 4.4        No reports of significant damage. 

Banning January 6, 
2016 4.4              No reports of significant damage. 

Ridgecrest July 5, 2019 7.1 
1 dead; preliminary estimate of economic 

losses $1 billion to $5 billion.  Preceded by 
M6.4 foreshock on July 4. 

 
 

Summarizing Risk 
 

Probability: Event is likely to occur 
• Event is probable within the next three years 
• Event has up to 1 in 3 years chance of occurring 
(1/3=33%) 
• History of events is greater than 20% but less than or equal 
to 33% likely per year 

Magnitude/Severity: Catastrophic 
• Based on the risk assessment, it is evident that 

earthquakes will continue to have potentially devastating 
economic impacts to certain areas of the District.  
Impacts that not quantified, but can be anticipated in 
future events such as injury and loss of life, commercial 
and residential structural damage, disruption of and 
damage to public infrastructure, secondary health 
hazards (e.g. mold and mildew), damage to roads/bridges 
resulting in loss of mobility, significant economic impact 
(jobs, sales, tax revenue) upon the community, negative 
impact on commercial and residential property values, 
and significant disruption to students and teachers as 
temporary facilities and relocations would likely be 
needed. 

 
 
4.2.3 Flood Hazards 
The following section describes the hazard and then details the historical events associated with 
this hazard for the West Valley Water District.  

 
General Definition: A flood, as defined by the National Flood Insurance Program is: "A general 
and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of two or more acres of normally dry 
land area or of two or more properties (at least one of which is your property) from: 

 
• Overflow of inland or tidal waters. 

• Unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source, or a 
mudflow. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 58



40  

The collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or similar body of water as a result 
of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated cyclical 
levels that result in a flood." 

 
Floods can be slow, or fast rising but generally develop over a period of days. Mitigation 
includes any activities that prevent an emergency, reduce the chance of an emergency happening, 
or lessen the damaging effects of unavoidable emergencies. Flooding tends to occur in the 
summer and early fall because of the monsoon and is typified by increased humidity and high 
summer temperatures. The standard for flooding is the so-called "100-year flood," a benchmark 
used by the Federal Emergency Management Agency to establish a standard of flood control in 
communities throughout the country. Thus, the 100-year flood is also referred to as the 
"regulatory" or "base" flood. Actually, there is little difference between a 100-year flood and 
what is known as the 10-year flood. Both terms are really statements of probability that scientists 
and engineers use to describe how one flood compares to others that are likely to occur. In fact, 
the 500-year flood and the 10-year flood are only a foot apart on flood elevation-which means 
that the elevation of the 100-year flood falls somewhere in between. The term 100-year flood is 
often incorrectly used and can be misleading. It does not mean that only one flood of that size 
will occur every 100 years.  What it actually means is that there is a one percent chance of a 
flood of that intensity and elevation happening in any given year. In other words, it is the flood 
elevation that has a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded each year. And it could 
occur more than once in a relatively short period of time. (By comparison, the 10-year flood 
means that there is a ten percent chance for a flood of its intensity and elevation to happen in any 
given year.) 

 

Figure 6 shows the flood hazard within the District’s service area prepared using the 2021 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) maps. 
The NFHL is a computer database that contains the flood hazard map information from FEMA’s 
Flood Map Modernization program. These map data are from Digital Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(DFIRM) databases and Letters of Map Revision (LOMRs). The maps use computed or 
estimated water surface elevations combined with topographic mapping data to represent the 
flood hazard. The 100-year flood represents a compromise between minor floods and the greatest 
flood likely to occur in a given area. In most cases the 100-year flood is less than the flood of 
record and has been widely adopted as the common design and regulatory standard in the US. It 
was formally established as a standard for use by Federal agencies in 1977 and later confirmed 
by FEMA in 1982. 

 
Description: Flooding occurs along the Lytle Creek Wash. Fortunately, the District only has 
three facilities within the 100-year floodplain, so any flooding from storms should be limited to 
these facilities. 

 
Since 2010, the District has had no incidents of flooding. Prior to 2010, two previous floods have 
caused damage to the District’s facilities. In 1992, the site for Reservoir 2-4 flooded with water 
from mountain drainage. The water from the reservoir site then drained onto a neighboring site. 
In 1969, the wellhead for Well 2 was washed out. Earthmovers were required to repair the 
wellhead. 

 
Please note that the District is not a member of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and is 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 59



41  

fortunate to not have any identified repetitive and severe repetitive loss properties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 60



42  

Figure 6:  2021 Flood Map  
Data Source:  Southern California Association of Government 
 

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 61



43  

In recent history, there have been 31 floods, storms, and flash floods in the District’s general service 
area.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

 
Table 7: Flooding History 
Summarizes the occurrences, impact, and cost of this hazard 

 
Date of 
Event 

Type 
of Damage 

Amount 
of Damage 

Statewide 
or Local 

Dec-55 74 deaths $200 M Statewide 
 

Apr-58 
13 deaths, several 

injuries 
$20 M, plus $4 M 

agricultural. 
 

Statewide 

Fall 
1965 

Abnormally heavy and 
continuous rainfall. 

Public- $5.8 M; private 
$16.0 M; 

Total $21.8 M. 

Riverside, San 
Bernardino, 

Ventura, San Diego 
Counties 

Winter 
1966 

Abnormally heavy and 
continuous rainfall. 

Public- $14.6 M; private 
$14 M; 

Total $28.7 M. 
            Various 

Winter 
1969 

Storms, flooding, 47 
dead, 161 injured. An 

alluvial flood and 
debris flow on Deer 

Creek in San 
Bernardino County 
killed 11 people. 

Public- $185 M, Private - 
$115 M; 

Total -$300 M. 
  Various 

Sep-76 High winds, heavy 
rains, and flooding 

Public-$65.7 M; private- 
$54.3 M; Total-

$120 M. 

Imperial, Riverside, 
San Bernardino, 

San Diego Counties 

Winter 
1978 

14 dead, at least 21 
injured 

Public-$73 M; private-$44 
M; 

Total -$117 M; 2,538 homes 
destroyed. 

Various 

Jul-79  
Public-$3.0 M; private- 

$22.9 M; 
Total -$25.9 M. 

           Riverside 

 
Feb-80 

Rain, wind, mud 
slides, and flooding  Various 

Winter 
82-83 

Heavy rains, high 
winds, flooding, levee 

breaks 

Public-$151 M; private- 
$159 M; agricultural-$214 

M; Total-$524 M. 
Various 

Aug-83 High winds, storms, 
and flooding; 3 deaths 

Public $10 M, private $15 
M, agricultural $10 M; 

Total-$35 M. 

Inyo, Riverside, San 
Bernardino 
Counties 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 62



43  

Date of 
Event 

Type 
of Damage 

Amount 
of Damage 

Statewide 
or Local 

Feb-92 Flooding, rainstorms, 
mud slides; 5 deaths 

Public-$95 M; private-$18.5 M; 
business-$8.5 M, agricultural-

$1.5 M; 
Total-$123 M. 

Los Angeles, 
Ventura, Kern, 

Orange, San 
Bernardino 
Counties 

Dec-92 
Snow, rain, and high 
winds, 20 deaths, 10 

injuries 
Total - $600 M            Various 

Jan-95 11 deaths 

Public-$299.6 M; 
individual-$128.4 M; 
businesses $58.4 M; 

highways-$158 M; ag-$97 
M; Total-$741.4 M; 

damage to homes: major- 
1,883; minor-4, 179; 

destroyed-370. 

            Various 

Feb-95 17 deaths 

Public property-$190.6 M; 
individual-$122.4 M; 

business-$46.9 M; 
highways-$79 M; ag-$651.6 

M; Total-approximately 
$1.1 billion; damage to 

homes: major-1,322; minor- 
2,299; destroyed-267. 

57 counties (all 
except Del Norte) 

Feb-98 17 deaths $550 M Various 

Dec-03  15 deaths  

San Bernardino – 
Waterman Canyon 
from Lytle Creek 

River. 

July-06 Thunderstorms and 
Flooding 

Flooding occurred along some Mill 
Creek tributaries.  Mud and rock 
debris covered parts of Valley of 

the Falls Drive. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Oct-06 Thunderstorms and 
Flooding 

18 homes and businesses and two 
vehicles were damaged by 

flooding.  Big sinkholes were left 
in a road.  One swift water rescue.  
Mud and debris were left on roads. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Nov-07 Heavy Rains 

A debris flow (including large 
trees) over the Poomacha Burn 

area buried a house in mud, caused 
serious damage to several vehicles 

and highway 76.  The flow was 
estimated at 15 feet high, 150-200 

feet wide. 

San Bernardino 
County 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 63



44  

Aug-08 August Thunderstorms 
Flash floods up to 3’ deep carried 
rocks and mud and covered many 

roads in Idyllwild-Fern Valley. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Jan-10 January 2010 Winter 
Storms 

Widespread flooding resulted 
across the region. Some of the 

worst flash flooding occurred in 
the high desert on the 1.21 due to 

the prolonged heavy rainfall. 
Scores of homes and several 

schools sustained damage, and 
many roads were washed out in 

Hesperia, Apple Valley, 
Victorville and Adelanto. 

Numerous swift water rescues 
were needed, one of which 

likely saved four teens trapped in a 
storm water drain. Two deaths in 

Tijuana were attributed to the 
flooding. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Dec-10 Highland Flooding 
Incident 

Major landslides and flash 
flooding impacted communities of 

Highland. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Aug-13 Flooding-Remnants of 
Tropical Storm Ivo 

Debris and water came down from 
the Mountain Fire burn into Palm 

Springs. Floodwaters filled the 
Whitewater channel, which goes 
through several golf courses and 
crosses many roads from Palm 

Springs to La Quinta. Flash floods 
also in the Anza Borrego Desert. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Nov-13 Winter Storms 
Urban and flash flooding with 

mud/debris flows, causing 
numerous road closures. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Feb-14 Winter Storms 

Urban and flash flooding with 
mud/debris flows, causing 

numerous road closures and swift 
water rescues. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Aug-14 
Thunderstorms, heavy 

rain, flash flooding, 
mudslides 

Flash flooding and debris flows 
were common. Road closures and 
damage.  A debris flow blocked 

Hwy. 78 east of Julian on the 
Banner Grade that was one to two 
feet deep. The Banner Fire burn 

scar contributed to this flow. 

San Bernardino 
County 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 64



45  

July-15 Flash flooding resulting 
from Lake Fire 

Several debris flows resulted, 
including one consisting mostly of 

ash and mud over portions of 
Highway 38, up to a foot deep in 

some areas. 

San Bernardino 
County 

July-15 Severe Thunderstorms 

A debris flow hit the burn scar of 
Silverado Canyon. Flash floods hit 

Moreno Valley, Perris, and La 
Mesa on 7.19. A wet microburst 

struck Tierrasanta on 7.18, causing 
wind damage. A haboob caused 

wind damage in the Anza Borrego 
Park and in Palm Desert. The rain 
caused the first rain-out of a Los 
Angeles Angels baseball game 

since 1995, and a rare 2-hour rain 
delay at the San Diego Padres 

baseball game. Over 2000 
lightning strikes were reported on 
7.18, some starting small brush 

fires. Near Desert Center on 7.19 
eastbound lanes of Interstate 10 
collapsed where they crossed a 

heavily flowing wash. A vehicle 
drove into the hole in the collapsed 

bridge, trapping the driver and 
requiring rescue. I-10 was closed 
in both directions causing huge 

traffic backups. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Jan-16 Strong rain, flooding and 
mudslides 

A strong, low latitude jet stream 
brought a series of storms through 
Southern California with periods 
of moderate to heavy rain. Three-
day rainfall totals were around 2-

7” for the coast, valley and foothill 
areas, and 1-3” for the deserts. 

After several years of drought, this 
was the only precipitation event of 
significance during an otherwise 

disappointing strong El Niño 
season. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Aug-16 Flash flooding from storm 
system 

 San Bernardino 
County 

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 65



46  

Summarizing Risk 
 

  Probability: Event is likely to occur 
• Event is probable within the next three years 
• Event has up to 1 in 3 years chance of occurring 
(1/3=33%) 
• History of events is greater than 20% but less than 
or equal to 33% likely per year 

 
    
Magnitude/Severity: Limited 

• Complete shutdown of critical facilities for more 
than one week 

• 10-25% of property is severely damaged 
• Impacts that is not quantified, but anticipated in 

future events such as injury and loss of life, 
commercial and residential structural damage, 
disruption of and damage to public infrastructure, 
secondary health hazards (e.g. mold and mildew), 
damage to roads/bridges resulting in loss of 
mobility, significant economic impact (jobs, 
sales, tax revenue) upon the community, negative 
impact on commercial and residential property 
values, and significant disruption to students and 
teachers as temporary facilities and relocations 
would likely be needed. 

4.2.4 Wildfires Hazard 
The following section describes the hazard and then details the historical events associated with 
this hazard for the West Valley Water District. 
General Definition: There are three different classes of wild land or wildfires. A surface fire is 
the most common type and burns along the floor of a forest, moving slowly and killing or 
damaging trees. A ground fire is usually started by lightning and burns on or below the forest 
floor. Crown fires spread rapidly by wind and move quickly by jumping along the tops of trees. 
Wildfires are usually signaled by dense smoke that fills the area for miles around. Wildfires 
present a significant potential for disaster in the southwest, a region of relatively high 
temperatures, low humidity, and low precipitation during the summer, and during the spring, 
moderately strong daytime winds. Combine these severe burning conditions with people or 
lightning and the stage is set for the occurrence of large, destructive wildfires. 

Description: Because the average annual rainfall in the District’s service area is less than 17 
inches per year, portions of the area are very rural, and there are forests surrounding portions of 
the District, wildfires are a potential hazard. 

 
Figures 7 shows the fire threat map for the District’s north and south systems, in San 
Bernardino County prepared by the California Fire’s Fire and Resources assessment Program. 
The maps show four threat classes that range from no threat to extreme threat. The figures show 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 66



47  

that most of the District’s water system is in an area of low fire hazard except for the facilities 
in Pressure Zones 4 & 5 areas. However, a more detailed examination during the site 
reconnaissance confirmed a low fire hazard because of a clearing zone around the facilities. The 
District has an active maintenance program to address such issues. 

 
Figure 7: Fire Hazard Severity Zone Maps 
Cal Fire’s Fire and Resources Assessment Program (FRAP) Map of District’s Service Area 2021 
 

 
 

The FRAP map identifies areas of fire hazards and labels them by severity. Yellow is the least intense 
level and red the most intense. The District’s planning area located within the blue boundary in 2021 
shows about 20% of District’s planning area is in the very high fire hazard severity zone 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 67



48  

  2021 Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ) of District’s Planning Area  

 
 
The FHSZ map identifies areas of fire hazards and labels them by severity. Yellow is the least intense 
level and red the most intense. The District’s planning area located within the yellow boundary in 
2021 shows about 20% of District’s planning area is in the very high fire hazard severity zone. 

Since 2010, the District has had no incidents of wildfires that have caused damage to any 
facilities. In 2003, wildfires damaged the Zone 8 reservoir and pump station. The pump station 
roof was burned off; all electrical, switch gear, and SCADA were lost to the site. Also, the 
buried telephone line was lost to the site. The reservoir had paint damage. Climate change and 
drought will likely increase the frequency and severity of wildfires in the region going forward. 

 
In previous years, there have been over forty wildfires that caused damage to San Bernardino County. 
 
Table 8: Wildfire History 
Summarizes the occurrences, impact, and costs of this hazard. 

 
 

Date of 
Event 

Type 
of Damage 

Amount 
of Damage 

Statewide 
or Local 

 
July-60 

 
 
No deaths, 12 
injuries  

 

$10 M, 
74,000 Acres, 33 homes destroyed. 

Los Angeles, San 
Bernardino Counties 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 68



49  

  Fall 1970      19 deaths 

Public- $52.8 M; watershed - $24.8 
M; private - $145.9 M; Total - 
$223.6 M; 576,508 acres, 722 

buildings, 
San Bernardino County – 

53,100 acres, 54 buildings. 

Various 

Dec-70  $3.2 M Riverside 

    Nov-80  

Public-$14 M; private-$50.8 M; 
TOTAL-$64.8M. 

San Bernardino County - 65 
buildings, 5482 acres destroyed. 

Additionally, 355 buildings, 41,472 
acres destroyed. 

Various 

    Aug-87 3 deaths, 76 
injuries 

$18 M (estimated); 1,070 fires. 
534,661 acres burned, 835 square 

miles, 38 homes destroyed. 
Various 

   June-90 
3 deaths, 89 

injuries 
$300 M+; 22,500 blackened acres, 

492 homes destroyed. 

Los Angeles, Santa 
Barbara, Riverside, 

San Bernardino 
Counties 

     Oct-93 4 deaths, 162 
injuries 

Total property estimate-$1 B; 1078 
destroyed structures, 193,814 acres 

destroyed. 

Los Angeles, 
Ventura, Riverside, 

San Bernardino, 
Orange, San Diego 

Counties 

    July-00 No deaths, 12 
injuries 

$10 M, 
74,000 Acres, 33 homes destroyed. 

Los Angeles, San 
Bernardino Counties 

    Oct-03 22 deaths $218 M +,750,043 acres burned. 

Los Angeles, 
Ventura, 

Riverside, San 
Bernardino, San 
Diego Counties 

June-05 Paradise Fire,  Burned 3,022 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Jan-06 Plunge Fire Burned 485 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

July-06 Sawtooth 
Complex 

Burned 61,700 acres, destroyed 50 
homes, 8 mobile homes, 13 

garages, 171 outbuildings, 191 cars 
and pickups, 3 R.V’s, 27 trailers, 2 
railcars, 9 tractors.  12 residences 
were damaged.  The cost of this 

fire exceeded $16.8 million.  One 
civilian was killed in his fire. 

San Bernardino 
County 

July-06 Millard 
Complex Burned 24,210 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 69



50  

July-06 Heart Fire Burned 800 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

July-06 Whispering 
Pines Fire Burned 1,050 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

Aug-06 Emerald Fire Burned 2,000 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Sept-06 Pinnacles 
Fire Burned 2,370 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

Nov-06 Sierra Fire Burned 300 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Dec-06 Citrus Fire Burned 525 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

March-07 Las Flores 
Fire Burned 4,100 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

Sept-07 Butler II Fire Burned 14,089 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Sept-07 Hay Fire Burned 75 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Oct-07 
Sierra/Glen 

Helen/Devore 
Fires 

Burned 430 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Oct-07 
Grass Valley 
Fire, 1,247 

acres 

Burned 1,247 acres with 174 
homes, 2 outbuildings destroyed, 
and damaged 22 structures. Total 
costs of the Grass and Slide fires 

including property loss and 
suppression costs was 

$177,140,550. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Oct-07 Slide Fire, 
12,789 acres 

Burned 12,789 acres and destroyed 
273 homes, 3 outbuildings, and 

damaged 45 structures. Total costs 
of the Grass and Slide fires 
including property loss and 

suppression costs was 
$177,240,550. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Oct-08 Interstate 215 
Fire Burned 250 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

Oct-08 
Little 

Mountain 
Fire 

Burned 225 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Oct-08 Foxborough 
Fire Burned 250 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

Oct-08 San Antonio 
Fire Burned 200 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

Nov-08 Freeway Fire Burned 28,889 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 70



51  

Aug-09 
Oak Glen-
Pendleton 

Fires 
Burned 2,019 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

Oct-09 Sheep Fire Burned 7,128 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Sept-11 Hill Fire Burned 1,158 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Nov-12 Devore Fire Burned 335 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

June-13 Mill Fire Burned 534 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Aug-13 Sharp Fire Burned 243 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Sept-13 Sierra Fire Burned 200 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

April-14 Etiwanda 
Fire Burned 2,143 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

May-14 Rancho 
Incident Burned 1,548 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

March-15 River Bottom 
Fire Burned 185 acres. San Bernardino 

County 

June-15 Lake Fire 

Burned 31,359 acres and was the 
cause of 6 minor firefighter injuries 
and 1 residence and 3 outbuildings 

were destroyed. 

San Bernardino 
County 

July-15 
North 

Fire/Pines 
Fire 

Burned 4,250 acres, destroying 7 
homes, 16 outbuildings and 44 
vehicles in the community of 

Baldy Mesa.  No injuries were 
reported. 

San Bernardino 
County 

Aug-15 Summit Fire Burned 555 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Aug-16 Pilot Fire Burned 8,110 acres. San Bernardino 
County 

Aug-16 Blue Cut Fire 

Burned 36,274 acres, destroying an 
estimated 105 single family 

residences and 216 outbuildings.  3 
single family residences and 5 
other structures were damaged.   

San Bernardino 
County 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 71



 

52  

Summarizing Risk 
 

Probability: Event is likely to occur 
• Event is probable within the next three years 
• Event has up to 1 in 3 years chance of occurring (1/3=33%) 
• History of events is greater than 20% but less than or equal to 

33% likely per year 
  
Magnitude/Severity: Limited 

• Wildfires and their impact vary by location and severity of any 
given wildfire event, and will likely only affect certain areas of 
the District during specific times.   

• Impact that is not quantified, but anticipated in future events 
such as injury and loss of life, commercial and residential 
structural damage, disruption of and damage to public 
infrastructure, secondary health hazards (e.g. mold and mildew), 
damage to roads/bridges resulting in loss of mobility, significant 
economic impact (jobs, sales, tax revenue) upon the community, 
negative impact on commercial and residential property values, 
and significant disruption to students and teachers as temporary 
facilities and relocations would likely be needed 

 

4.2.5 Terrorism 

General Definition: The following Section describes the hazard and then details the historical 
events associated with this hazard for the District. 

 
Description: There is no single, universally accepted definition of terrorism, however, FEMA 
defines “terrorism” as intentional, criminal, malicious acts. FEMA document 386-7 refers to 
terrorism specifically as the use of Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD), including biological, 
chemical, nuclear, and radiological weapons; arson, incendiary, explosive, and armed attacks; 
industrial sabotage and intentional hazardous materials releases; and “cyberterrorism.” FEMA 
developed the Integrated Emergency Management System (IEMS) using an all- hazards 
approach. While the IEMS was established as an “all-hazard” approach, responding to the threat 
of terrorism (referred to as counterterrorism) came to be viewed as the responsibility of law 
enforcement, defense, and intelligence agencies. Furthermore, defensive efforts to protect people 
and facilities from terrorism (referred to as antiterrorism) were generally limited to the 
government sector, the military, and some industrial interests. While the term “mitigation” refers 
generally to activities that reduce loss of life and property by eliminating or reducing the effects 
of disasters, in the terrorism context it is often interpreted to include a wide variety of 
preparedness and response actions. For the purposes of this document, the traditional meaning 
will be assumed; that mitigation refers to specific actions that can be taken to reduce loss of life 
and property from manmade hazards by “modifying the built environment” or antiterrorism to 
reduce the risk and potential consequences of these hazards. 

 
After the Waterman Terrorism Incident on December 2nd, 2015 two full time positions with a 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 72



 

53  

regional FBI-led terrorist task force (FBI’s Joint Terrorism Task Force) were created. These task 
force officers have the clearance to conduct terrorism investigations in the County. The Task 
Force includes partners from Homeland Security Investigations (HSI), the San Bernardino Police 
Department, the San Bernardino County Sheriff’s Department, the Riverside County Sheriff’s 
Department, the Ontario Police Department, the Riverside Police Department, the Corona Police 
Department and the Chino Police Department. 
 

 
Table 9: Terrorism History 

 
Attack Description Public Health Impact 

 
A mass shooting 

On December 2, 2015 at the 
Inland Regional Center in 
San Bernardino, California, 

• 14 people were killed 

 
 
 
 
 
A mass shooting and an 
attempted bombing 

The perpetrators, Syed 
Rizwan Farook and 
Tashfeen Malik, a married 
couple living in the city of 
Redlands, targeted a San 
Bernardino County 
Department of Public 
Health training event and 
Christmas party of about 80 
employees in a rented 
banquet room Farook was a 
U.S.-born citizen of 
Pakistani descent, who 
worked as a health 
department employee. 
Malik was a Pakistani-born 
green card holder. 

• 22 others were 
seriously injured. 

Summarizing Risk: 
 

Probability Possible:   Possible 
• Event is probable within the next five years 
• Event has up to 1 in 5 years chance of occurring 

(1/5=20%) 
• History of events is greater than 10% but less than or equal 

to 20% likely per year 
 

Impact:  Catastrophic  
• More than 50% of property is severely damaged 
• Impacts that are not quantified, but can be anticipated in 

future events such as injury and loss of life, disruption of 
and damage to District and other public infrastructure, 
significant economic impact (jobs, sales, tax revenue) 
upon the community, negative impact on property values, 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 73



 

54  

uncontrolled fires and associated injuries and damage, and 
psychological effects on District employees and 
customers. 

4.3 Inventory Assets 
This section provides an overview of the assets in the District and the hazards to which these 
facilities are susceptible. 

 
4.3.1 Population 
The total population of District is currently approximately 90,000. 

 
4.3.2 Buildings 
As of April 2021, the District operates and maintains the following facilities: 

 
• 8 pressure zones, 

• 25 existing reservoirs with a total storage capacity of 72.8 million gallons (MG), 

• 17 active wells with a total pumping capacity of 36,750 gallons per minute (gpm) or 
production capacity of 53.0 million gallons per day (MGD), 

• 12 Booster Stations (89.0 MGD Pumping Capacity), 
 

• Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility (14.5 MGD capacity) utilizing local 
surface water from Lytle Creek and water from the State Project Water (SPW), 

• Fluidized Bed Reactor Perchlorate Treatment Facility (2.8 MGD capacity) to 
treat groundwater from wells contaminated with perchlorate, 

• 5 ion exchange source treatment systems, and 

• approximately 380 miles of distribution and transmission facilities (sizes 4 inches to 
48 inches) 

 
The District’s water system is divided into two noncontiguous areas: the north and south 
systems. The north system includes Pressure Zones 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8, with Zone 8 being the 
highest pressure zone. Water can be transferred between zones in the north system. The south 
system includes Pressure Zones 2, 3, and 3A; with Zone 3A being the highest zone (but still 
lower than Zone 4). In general, water can be transferred from the north to the south systems, but 
not pumped from the south to the north system. From Zone 4, water can be supplied to both the 
north and the south systems. Therefore, all the groundwater supply wells, treatment facilities, 
reservoirs, and pump stations located in the north system are considered critical for the District. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 74



 

55  

 Figure 8 - District Facilities 
  
 Existing System Pipes by Pressure Zones 
 

 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 75



 

56  

Existing Groundwater Wells 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 76



 

57  

Existing Pressure Reducing Valves 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 77



 

58  

Existing Booster Pump Stations 
 

 
 

4.3.3 Critical Facility List 
This section provides a listing of the critical facilities in the District. The primary contact for all 
the District facilities is the following: 

 
Primary Contact: Shamindra Manbahal 

855 W. Baseline Rialto, CA 92377 
Phone: (909) 820-3701 
E-mail: smanbahal@wvwd.org 

 
Critical Facilities: The Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Plant (WFP) was identified as a 
critical facility because it supplies approximately 49 percent of the water for the District. The 
WFP provides water supply to Zones 5, 6, 7, and 8. 

 
The remaining facilities in the north system include 7 groundwater well sites, 5 reservoir sites, 3 
sites with reservoirs, pump stations and wells, and 2 sites with reservoirs and pump stations. 
Also, the 380 miles of pipelines at the District are considered critical because they are needed to 
transport water. 

 
To minimize any hazard potential from earthquakes the District’s newly constructed facilities, all 
future reservoirs will be constructed adequately for existing seismic conditions, which includes a 
swivel joint for the inlet/outlet to allow movement, anchoring the tank down with bolts to a large 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 78



 

59  

concrete ring footing, and seismic valves. In addition, all buildings will meet the current seismic 
building codes. 

 
Table 10: Critical Facilities for the District 

 
Name Facility Type Description 

 
Oliver P. Roemer WFP 

Water Treatment 
Plant 

 
8,600 sq ft bldg 

Well 2 & 4-1 Arsenic Treatment Well 50 sq ft bldg 
Well 4A Well 50 sq ft bldg 
Well 5A Well 50 sq ft bldg 
Well 1A Well 50 sq ft bldg 

Reservoirs R6-2 to 6-4, Zone 7-1 PS, 
W23A, W24 

Reservoirs, Pump 
Station and Wells 

 
800 sq ft bldg 

 
Reservoirs R4-1, R4-2, Zone 5-1 PS 

Reservoirs, Pump 
Station 

 
1,100 sq ft bldg 

Zone 4 Aeration Reservoir, Zone 4-1 
PS, W-7, W8A 

Reservoir, Pump 
Station and Wells 

 
650 sq ft bldg 

 
Reservoir 4-3 & Zone 5-2 PS 

Reservoir and 
Pump Station 

 
800 sq ft bldg 

 
Reservoirs 7-2 to 7-4, Zone 8-2 PS 

Reservoirs and 
Pump Station 

 
800 sq ft bldg 

Reservoirs 5-1 to 5-3 & Zone 6-1 
PS, Zone 6-2 PS 

Reservoirs and 
Pump Stations 

 
800 sq ft bldg 

Reservoirs 8-1 & 8-2 Reservoirs  
Fluidized Bed Reactor Treatment 

Plant 
Water Treatment 

Plant 
 

1,700 sq ft 
bldg 

4.4 Vulnerability Assessment 
4.4.1 Methodology 
The facility replacement costs were calculated using the District’s accounting and insurance 
replacement values and/or the following engineering estimates for construction of new facilities: 

 
1. Reservoirs – Cost is typically $1 per gallon of capacity. 
2. Pump Stations – Cost is approximately $2000 per horsepower (HP) of capacity. 

3. Pipelines – Cost is approximately $9-10 per diameter-inch per foot of pipeline. 
4. Wells – Cost is typically $3,000,000 per well. 

 
The annual economic impacts were estimated by ranking the facilities by their importance to the 
District’s production of water and using this ranking to develop a percentage of importance for 
each facility. This percentage was applied to the projected 2020/ 2021 annual water revenue 
from the District of $24,000,000 to obtain the annual economic impact for each facility. 
 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 79



 

60  

4.4.2 Drought Vulnerability Analysis 
Population: Approximately 100 percent of the District’s population is vulnerable. 

Critical Facilities: Approximately 50 percent of the District’s critical facilities are vulnerable. 

The specific critical facilities vulnerable in the District are: 
All wells and surface water for the WFP are critical to drought because they supply the water for 
the District. During a drought, the levels in the wells become lower and limit pumping, therefore 
many wells are not able to produce as much water during the peak demands. Also, since there is 
less surface water supply to the treatment plant, more water has to be imported from Northern 
California, at a higher cost. 

 
Estimated Losses: The economic loss resulting from this hazard is approximately $28.6M. The 
loss from damage to structures from this hazard is approximately $0. 

 

On August 6, 2015, the District adopted Ordinance No. 80, Amending Article No. 24 Water 
Conservation, of the Service Rules and Regulations. This Ordinance established the policy and 
conservation measures needed during drought conditions. The Ordinance states that during Stage 
1-Normal Conditions, the District’s customers shall have voluntary conservation. Stage 2-Water 
Alert, the District’s customers are asked for a minimum twenty percent (20%) reduction in water 
usage. Stage 3-Water Warning, the District’s customers are required to reduce a minimum of 
twenty-five percent (25%) in water usage. Also, the adoption of this ordinance allowed the 
District to create a Stage III, A, B & C to be able to restrict number of irrigation days allowed by 
Board action instead of ordinance adoption. Stage 4-Water 
Emergency, the District’s customers are required to reduce a minimum of thirty percent (30%) in 
water usage and no watering of any landscaped area. This Ordinance also updated the changes 
required by the State Water Resources Control on May 5, 2015. 

 
Losses for the drought are estimated assuming the following: 

 
1. The current drought. 

 
2. Due to the drought, the District has limited pumping capabilities due to lower ground 

water levels, and a reduction in the surface water yield from Lytle Creek, resulting in an 
increased reliance on State Project Water (SPW) water. 

 
3. The economic losses are lost revenue. 

 
4. Stage 3 of the Ordinance started in 2015. For the fiscal year 2015-2016 the average 

annual water revenue from the District using 2015-2016 fiscal year of $17M is assumed 
and multiplied by the 25 percent reduction. 

 
5. From a drought, there is no damage to the wells, treatment facilities, or pipelines. There 

is just less water to sell to bring in revenue. 
 

The estimated number of fatalities resulting from this hazard is 0. The estimated number of 
injuries resulting from this hazard is 0. The percent of District's population at risk: 100% 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 80



 

61  

4.4.3. Earthquake Vulnerability Analysis 
Population: Approximately 75 percent of the District’s population is vulnerable. 

 
Critical Facilities: Approximately 100 percent of the District’s critical facilities are vulnerable. 

 

The specific critical facilities vulnerable in West Valley Water District are: 
There are two faults that affect the District facilities. The first fault (San Andreas) includes all 
the District's facilities in the North System, or Pressure Zones 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8. The North 
System includes all 15 of the District's critical facilities. 

 

Estimated Losses: The economic loss resulting from this hazard is approximately $12M. The loss 
from damage to structures from this hazard is approximately $128.7M. 

 
Losses are estimated assuming: 

 
1. The projected 2020/2021 annual water revenue from the District at $24M is used to 

estimate the lost annual revenue. 
 

2. The District has 6 months of lost revenue from the earthquake. 
 

3. All the District’s critical facilities are at risk, including 30 percent of the District’s 
pipelines. 

 
4. Without the critical facilities no revenue can be generated for the District. 

 
The estimated number of fatalities resulting from this hazard is 0. The estimated number of 
injuries resulting from this hazard is approximately 50. The estimated number of displaces 
resulting from this hazard is approximately 1,110. The total number of people affected is 1,160. 
The percent of District's population at risk: 75% 
The Assumptions in the San Bernardino County Fire Office of Emergency Services Disaster 
Recovery Plan are based on a (M) 7.8 on the Southern San Andreas Fault. This scenario was 
estimated using both HAZUS-MH and expert opinion through 13 special studies and 6 expert 
panels, the assumptions in this scenario predict 284 Deaths, 21,244 injuries (103 serious), and 
74,047 displaced households. 

 
 

4.4.4 Flooding Vulnerability Analysis 
Population: Approximately 10 percent of the District’s population is vulnerable. 

 
Critical Facilities: Approximately 13 percent of the District’s critical facilities are vulnerable. 

 
 

The specific critical facilities vulnerable in the District are: 
Well 2 and the reservoir site for Reservoirs 7-2 through 7-4 are both in the floodplain. Of the 15 
critical facilities, 2 are critical, generating the 13 percent. 

 
The District is not a member of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and is fortunate to 
not have any identified Repetitive and Severe Repetitive Loss properties. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 81



 

62  

4.4.5 Wildfires Vulnerability Analysis 
Population: Approximately 25 percent of the District’s population is vulnerable. 

Critical Facilities: Approximately 40 percent of the District’s critical facilities are vulnerable. 

The specific critical facilities vulnerable in the District are: 
The critical facilities that have sites in rural areas with brush are Wells 1A, 2, 5A, 7 and 8A, 
Reservoir 7-1 and Zone 8-1 PS, and the site for Reservoirs 7-2 through 7-4. These total 6 out of 
the 15 critical facility sites, for 40 percent. 

 

4.4.6 Terrorism Vulnerability Analysis 
Population: Approximately 10 percent of the District’s population is vulnerable. 

Critical Facilities: Approximately 10 percent of the District’s critical facilities are vulnerable. 

The specific critical facilities vulnerable in the District are: 
The West Valley Main District Office. 

 
 

4.4.7 Potential Loss Estimation 
Table 11: Summarizes the economic impacts on the critical facilities for the District 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 82



 

63  

Table 11: Economic Impacts on Critical Facilities for the District 
 

 
Name 

Economic 
Impact ($) 

Replacement 
Cost ($) 

 
Description of Economic Impact 

 

 
 

Oliver P. Roemer WFP 

 
 

3702 

 
 

20,055 

The treatment plant supplies approximately 25 percent of the 
District’s water to their customers. These customers would 

lose their water supply. 

 

 
 

Well 2 & 4-1 Arsenic Treatment 

 
 

1480 

 
 

2,100 

No Lytle Creek Basin groundwater available from well to 
supply customers with water in pressure zone. Many 

groundwater wells in the Basin and it supplies water to most 
important pressure zone for the District. 

 

Well 4A 693 1,575 See description for Well 2.  
Well 5A 693 1,575 See description for Well 2.  
Well 1A 693 1,575 See description for Well 2.  

Reservoirs R6-1 to 6-4, Zone 7-1 
PS, W23A, W24 

 
693 

 
11,418 

 
Same as above description. 

 

 
Reservoirs R4-1, R4-2, Zone 5-1 

PS, W-22A 

 
 

550 

 
 

6,195 

No storage of water available for pressure zone to meet peak 
demands. No groundwater available from well to supply 

customers in pressure zone. 

 

Zone 4 Aeration Reservoir, Zone 
4-1 PS, W-7, W8A 

 
559 

 
5,607 

 
See description for Well 2. 

 

 
Reservoir 4-3 & Zone 5-2 PS 

 
490 

 
6,825 

No storage of water available for pressure zone to meet peak 
demands. 

 

Reservoirs 7-2 to 7-4, Zone 8-2 
PS 

 
526 

 
7,875 

 
Same as above description. 

 

Reservoirs 5-1, 5-3 & Zone 6-1 
PS, Zone 6-2 PS 

 
518 

 
9,765 

 
Same as above description. 

 

Reservoirs 8-1 & 8-2 518 308 Same as above description.  
Reservoir 5-2 488 2940 Same as above description.  

     

 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 83



 

64  

 
Pipelines 414 167,185 There would be no way to transport water to customers. 

TOTAL COSTS: $12,017 $244,998  
 
 

Note: Dollar amounts in thousands 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 84



 

65  

Section 5: Community Capability Assessment 
 

 
This section describes the resources (staffing, agencies, departments, equipment) and tools 
(existing plans, policies, regulations, and ordinances), the District has in place that can assist 
promote and implement mitigation actions in the service area. These capabilities generally fall 
into the following broad categories: 

 
Agencies and People 
Existing Plans 
Regulations, Codes, Policies, and Ordinances 
Mitigation Programs and Projects 
Fiscal Resources 

5.1 Agencies and People 
The District is located in Southwestern San Bernardino County (95 percent) and Northern 
Riverside County (5 percent), within the San Bernardino Valley. The District’s service area 
includes portions of the Cities of Rialto, Fontana, Bloomington, Jurupa Valley, Colton, and 
unincorporated areas in San Bernardino and Riverside Counties.  Because the District’s service 
area covers three cities and two counties, the District uses five general plans in its land use 
planning.  
The District will incorporate mitigation planning as an integral component of daily operations.  
This will be accomplished by the Planning Team members working with their respective 
departments to integrate mitigation strategies into existing local agencies, public policies, 
funding sources, individuals, and other resources that can support hazard mitigation activities 
in the District.  The hazard mitigation actions build off of the existing success of these 
resources and leverage their capabilities to support improved resiliency in the project area.  
The capabilities assessment looked at the following types of resources.  
 

Resource 
Type Resource Name Description and Capacity to Support 

Mitigation 

District 
Staff General Manager 

The General Manager is the liaison to the 
Board of Directors and oversees the day-to-day 
operations of the District.  The General 
Manager provides leadership and initiates 
strategic planning to implement the goals and 
the vision of the Board of Directors.  The 
Foundational Principles provide guidance in 
establishing long-time organizational goals, 
and the General Manager utilizes the talent and 
skills of the entire staff to fulfill the 
organizational objectives. 

District 
Staff 

Human Resources 
& Risk 
Management 

Human Resources (HR) Department ensures the 
District is compliant with all legal and regulatory 
requirements of the workplace.  In addition to 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 85



 

66  

Department workforce development, the division is 
responsible for overseeing employee benefits, 
classification and compensation, policies and 
procedures, employee relations, administrative 
support, and employee development. 
 
The HR Department is identified as the 
coordinating agency for several mitigation action 
items. 

District 
Staff 

Public Affairs 
Department 

The District created a new position called the 
Director of Government and Legislative Affairs, 
who also serves as the grant manager, to solicit 
and manage grants.  Another new position also 
created: Government and Legislative Affairs 
Analyst. These positions work closely with the 
Federal and State Government Relations Firms to 
identify funding sources for mitigation projects. 
Public Affairs Department oversees the strategic 
communications, community outreach, water 
conservation outreach, special events, school 
education programs, and media relations for the 
District.  Several communication methods are 
used to disseminate information to internal and 
external customers and strengthen the District 
brand within the community and throughout the 
water industry.  These include the customer and 
staff newsletter, website management, social 
media outreach, community workshops and 
tours, community marketing, educational videos 
and signage on vehicles.  Additionally, the 
District participates in local safety fairs, and 
hosts water conservation workshops.  Each of 
these elements plays a critical role in promoting 
the District’s strategic vision, mission, and 
values. 
This department is also responsible for working 
with lobbyists to solicit and write grants. 
The Public Affairs Department is identified as 
the coordinating agency for several mitigation 
action items. 

Federal 
Government 
Relations 
Firm 

David Turch and 
Associates 

The District hired David Turch and Associates, a 
Federal Lobbyist, to represent the District to 
convey District’s needs to decision-makers in 
Washington, which cover a wide range of issues 
from drought, water sources, source treatment, 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 86



 

67  

aging infrastructure, homeland security, wildfire, 
flooding, to hazard mitigation and grant 
opportunities.  

State 
Government 
Relations 
Firm 

Tres ES Inc 

The District hired Tres ES Inc, a State Lobbyist, 
to represent the District to convey District’s 
needs to decision-makers in Sacramento, which 
cover a wide range of issues from drought, water 
sources, source treatment, aging infrastructure, 
cybersecurity, wildfire, flooding, to hazard 
mitigation and grant opportunities. 

District 
Staff 

Engineering – 
New 
Development 
Division 

This division is responsible for new development 
projects, water resource management, and the 
District’s Water Facilities Master Plans for water 
and water supplies.  This division also enforces 
compliance of applicable District, local, regional, 
state and federal rules and best practices related 
to water from residential, commercial and 
industrial developers.  This is done by an 
application and plan check process for all new 
development projects and tenant improvements 
of existing developments. The Assistant General 
Manager and Engineering Manager actively 
participate in regional water planning committees 
such as the Groundwater Council and Basin 
Technical Advisory Committee with member 
agencies:  Bear Valley Mutual Water Company, 
City of Colton, East Valley Water District, City 
of Loma Linda, City of Redlands, City of Rialto, 
City of Riverside, San Bernardino County Flood 
Control District, San Bernardino Municipal 
Water District, San Bernardino Valley Municipal 
Water District, San Bernardino Valley Water 
Conservation District, Western Municipal Water 
District, and Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
 
The Engineering-New Development Division 
will actively support numerous mitigation action 
items that identify the Engineering Department 
as the coordinating agency.   

District 
Staff 

Engineering-
Capital 
Improvement 
Project 

This division prioritizes and establishes 
schedules and methods for design and 
construction of District capital improvement 
projects.  This division monitors and oversees 
engineering design activities, including those 
prepared by consultants, prepares or reviews 
engineering plans, cost estimates, request for 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 87



 

68  

proposals, agreements, public works contracts, 
and project specifications.  This division 
implements construction management methods to 
manage contractors that are building the 
District’s capital improvements projects in the 
field.  
 
The Engineering-Capital Improvement Project 
will actively support numerous mitigation action 
items that identify the Engineering Department 
as the coordinating agency. 

District 
Staff 

Engineering -
Geographic 
Information 
Systems Division 

This division is responsible for coordination and 
participation in database management for the 
Geographic Information System (GIS).  This 
division updates and maintains GIS and 
databases for water facilities from construction 
drawings to as-built information, performs data 
capturing and conversion, data entry, and graphic 
editing activities, develops user friendly file 
management systems and completes geographic 
data analyses.  This division utilizes professional 
Global Positioning System (GPS) equipment to 
collect geographical information in the field, 
locates District assets, resolves accuracy issues 
using GPS and integrates GPS data into GIS 
database.  GIS viewing application provides 
accurate, accessible, and functional data.   
 
The Engineering-Geographic Information 
Systems Division is identified as the coordinating 
agency for several mitigation action items. 

District 
Staff 

Finance- 
Purchasing 
Department 

This department is responsible for logistical set-
up for all District events and maintain and repair 
District’s vehicles and heavy equipment.  This 
department maintains an updated list of 
prequalified contractors for emergencies and as-
needed basis. 
 
The Finance-Purchasing Department is identified 
as the coordinating agency for several mitigation 
action items. 

District 
Staff 

Finance 
Department 

Finance is responsible for transparently 
managing the use of the District’s funds and 
provides a wide variety of external and internal 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 88



 

69  

services. 
 
The Finance Department is identified as the 
coordinating agency for several mitigation action 
items. 

District 
Staff 

Operations-
Treatment 
Division 

This division is responsible for the operation and 
maintenance of a 14.5-million-gallon-per-day 
surface water treatment plant, a 3-million-gallon-
per day Fluidized Bed Reactor water treatment 
plant, and a 2-million-gallon-per-day ion 
exchange arsenic treatment plant. 
 
The Operations-Treatment Division is identified 
as the coordinating agency for several mitigation 
action items. 

District 
Staff 

Operations-Water 
Quality Division 

This division is responsible for District-wide 
water quality monitoring, state and federal 
drinking water regulatory compliance and the 
business plan. 
 
The Operations-Water Quality Division is 
identified as the coordinating agency for several 
mitigation action items. 

District 
Staff 

Operations-
Distribution 
Division 

Distribution’s responsibilities include the 
maintenance and repair of the district’s water 
system infrastructure which includes mains, 
hydrants, valves, services, and implementation 
for preventative maintenance programs.  This 
division is also responsible for the maintenance, 
repair, and general upkeep of the District’s 
buildings and building equipment. 
 
The Operations-Distribution Division is 
identified as the coordinating agency for several 
mitigation action items. 

District 
Staff  

Operations-
Production 
Division 

This division is responsible for the operation of 
17 groundwater wells, 12 pump stations, 25 
reservoirs, and 8 pressure zones.  Other 
responsibilities include the operation and 
maintenance of the District’s fleet of emergency 
standby power generators to provide emergency 
power to our facilities, in the event of loss of 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 89



 

70  

utility power; and construction, installation, 
testing, calibration, maintenance and repair of 
electrical systems and process control 
instrumentation systems. 
 
The Operations-Production Division is identified 
as the coordinating agency for several mitigation 
action items. 

District 
Staff 

Hazard Mitigation 
Planning Team 

Hazard Mitigation Planning Team is made up of 
representatives from various departments and 
divisions that are assigned mitigation action 
items in the Hazard Mitigation Plan.  In addition 
to responsibility to prepare each of the 5-year 
plan updates as required by Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA), the Planning 
Team is responsible for implementing, 
monitoring, and evaluating the plan during its 
routine meetings.   
 
The Planning Team is assigned several 
mitigation action items and plays a pivotal role in 
implementing and funding the overall Hazard 
Mitigation Plan. 

Agencies 

Emergency 
Response 
Network of the 
Inland Empire 

The District is part of the Emergency Response 
Network of the Inland Empire (ERNIE) group, 
which facilitates public agency preparedness for, 
response to, and recovery from local and regional 
disasters to ensure delivery of critical public 
services through mutual aid, communications, 
and compliance with state and federal emergency 
standards.   
 
ERNIE is made up of a group of volunteer 
agencies who enter into an agreement to provide 
mutual aid and assistance to help jurisdictions 
respond to incidents that require resources 
beyond the capability of the local agency.  
ERNIE assists agencies with training’s, 
communication, documentation for 
reimbursement, concept of emergency 
operations, and after-action reports and 
corrective action plan writing.  Nearby member 
agencies include the City of Corona, City of 
Redlands, City of Riverside, City of San 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 90



 

71  

Bernardino Water Department, East Valley 
Water District, Eastern Municipal Water District, 
Jurupa Community Services District, Elsinore 
Valley Municipal Water District, Monte Vista 
Water District, Riverside Highland Water 
Company, Rubidoux Community Services 
District, San Antonio Water Company, San 
Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District, 
Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority, Western 
Municipal Water District, etc. 
The ERNIE is identified as the coordinating 
agency for several mitigation action items. 

Agencies 

California 
Water/Wastewater 
Agency Response 
Network 
(WARN) 

The District is part of the California WARN, 
which is to support and promote statewide 
emergency preparedness, disaster response, and 
mutual assistance processes for public and 
private water and wastewater utilities.  Through 
the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program, 
members coordinate response activities and share 
resources during emergencies.  Nearby member 
agencies include the San Gabriel Valley Water 
Company, City of San Bernardino Water 
Department, Riverside Highland Water 
Company, City of Redland, Western Municipal 
Water District, Yucaipa Valley Water District, 
Jurupa Community Services District, etc. 
The California WARN is identified as the 
coordinating agency for several mitigation action 
items. 

Agencies 
Regional 
Wholesale Water 
Agencies 

Imported water can be purchased from Inland 
Empire Utilities Agency and San Bernardino 
Valley Municipal Water District. 

Agencies Regional Water 
Agencies 

The District has interconnections with 
neighboring water systems (Fontana Water 
Company, City of Rialto, San Bernardino 
Municipal Water District, Marygold Mutual 
Water Company, and Special County Water 
District) to either deliver or/and take water in 
case of emergencies.   

San 
Bernardino 
County 

Flood Control 
District 

San Bernardino County is a StormReady County.  
The District operates and maintains Cactus Basin 
2, a flood control basin located at 855 Base Line 
Road in the City of Rialto.  During rain seasons, 
the District assists in diverting runoff from 
Cactus Basin 2 to Cactus Basin 1. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 91



 

72  

City of 
Rialto  

Police 
Department 

The District coordinates with Rialto Police 
Department for training District staff in terrorism 
(active shooter) and offers District facilities as 
sobriety checkpoints. 

City of 
Rialto 

Rialto Fire 
Department 

The District conducts tours of District facilities 
for Rialto Fire Department, i.e., hydroelectric 
generation plant and water treatment plants, in 
assisting the fire department to prepare its pre-
fire plan. 

Plan Urban Water 
Management Plan 

The Urban Water Management Plan was last 
updated in 2020.  This plan outlines the water 
infrastructure needs until the District reaches 
build-out. 

San 
Bernardino 
County 

San Bernardino 
County Fire OES 

District staff worked with San Bernardino 
County Fire OES and Eastern Municipal Water 
District to complete the Disaster Recovery Plan 
in 2015. 

Plan Water Master 
Plan 

The Water Master Plan was last updated in 2020.  
This plan determines the future water demands 
and supply requirements for the District.  The 
plan identifies the water facilities needed to 
produce, deliver, store, and transport this supply 
to our customers.   

Plan 
Lytle Creek 
Watershed 
Sanitary Survey 

The Lytle Creek Watershed Sanitary Survey was 
last updated in 2018.  This plan assesses the 
source water quality of Lytle Creek to ensure the 
ability of the District’s surface water treatment 
plant to continue to provide the customers with 
drinking water that meets all current drinking 
water standards. 

 
The District created multiple new positions in Fiscal Year 2021/22.  They are the Director of 
Government and Legislative Affairs and the Government and Legislative Affairs Analyst. 
Additionally, the District hired a State Government Relations Firm, Tres ES Inc., in 2021.  The 
goals and desires of the District are that once the new positions are filled, these key staff 
would work cohesively with both the Federal and State Government Relations Firms to 
identify and pursue funding opportunities for mitigation projects.   
The District works collaboratively with neighboring water systems, mutual aid groups, cities, 
fire departments, police departments, and the Flood Control District of San Bernardino County 
to prepare for and mitigate impacts of emergencies. 
Other information regarding the District is as follows: 

Type of Building Codes: Municipal 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 92



 

73  

Local Electric Utilities: Southern California Edison and Colton Electric 
Local Water Utilities: West Valley Water District 

Local Sewage Treatment Utilities: City of Rialto Utility 
Local Natural Gas Utilities: Southern California Gas Company 
Local Telephone Utilities: AT&T 

 
Fire Insurance Rating: The District has facilities within the Cities of Rialto, Colton, and 

Fontana, which all have their own fire insurance ratings as well as the Counties of 
Riverside and San Bernardino 

Flood Insurance Claims: In the 1990s, the District had a lawsuit over flooding caused from 
Reservoir 2-4 site. The site was flooded with water from mountain drainage and the 
water then drained onto a neighboring site. A retention basin was constructed below the 
site to prevent flooding. 

 

5.2 Existing Plans and Data 
This section describes the existing plans for the District. 

 
Legislation provides the District a safeguard against water supply and some drought hazard 
protection. In 1991, the amendment to the Urban Water Management and Planning Act, in effect 
since 1983, requires water suppliers to estimate available water supplies at the end of one, two, 
and three years, and to develop contingency plans for shortages of up to 50 percent. The 
District’s 2015 Urban Water Management Plan presents water supply to demand comparisons 
through 2035. The 2015 UWMP was adopted by in 2016 and will update any demand and 
supplies documented in the 2010 UWMP and will also require all water agencies to reduce their 
water demand by 25 percent by the year 2020. The plan also presents water supply to demand 
comparisons for single dry to multiple dry year scenarios. 

 
Another planning document the District updates every 5-10 years is their Water Facilities Master 
Plan.  The District developed a Water Master Plan that was last updated 2020. The master plan 
develops a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the next 5 to 10 years. In the plan, the land use is 
based on the current General Plans of the City of Rialto, Fontana, Colton, Bloomington, Jurupa 
Valley, and Counties of San Bernardino and Riverside. The District uses its Master Plan CIP to 
fund and construct some of the mitigation projects that are identified. 

 
The District has an Emergency Plan (last updated May 2020) that is a written response plan 
detailing how the District will respond in the event of an emergency or disaster. The District 
must be prepared to respond to a variety of threats that require emergency actions by its 
employees. Potential threats include: 

 
Operational incidents, such as fire or bacteriological contamination of water associated with 

District facilities. 
Outsider malevolent acts, such as threatened or intentional contamination of water, 

intentional damage/destruction of facilities, detection of an intruder or intruder alarm, 
bomb threat, or suspicious mail. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 93



 

74  

Natural disasters, such as earthquakes, floods, or wildfires. 
 

On February 28, 2003, the President issued Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD) - 
5, which directs the Secretary of Homeland Security to develop and administer a National 
Incident Management System (NIMS). HSPD-5 requires all federal departments and agencies to 
adopt and implement the NIMS, and requires state and local jurisdictions to implement the 
NIMS to receive federal preparedness funding. 
The District performed the risk and resilience assessment on April 1, 2021 using the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) Vulnerability Self-Assessment Tool.  Specifically, 
EPA designed the tool to assist community water systems with meeting the requirements for risk 
and resilience assessments in America’s Water Infrastructure Act of 2018.  The tool helps water 
sector owners and operators with identifying the threats that present the highest risks to their 
facilities and with evaluating the costs and benefits of countermeasures to reduce those risks. 
 
The Planning Team gathered and reviewed existing data and plans during plan writing process.  
Numerous electronic and hard copy documents were used to support the planning process:   

• West Valley Water District Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 
https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/#annualoperatingandcapitalimprovementbudget 
Applicable Incorporation:  Mitigation projects and funding sources. 

• West Valley Water District Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports 
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-
content/uploads/2020/04/2019_West-Valley-Water-District_CAFR.pdf 
Applicable Incorporation:  Economic condition and outlook and District’s major 
initiatives. 

• West Valley Water District Reserve Policy 
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-
content/uploads/2018/02/Reserve-Policy_Exhibit-A-Reso2015-10_7-16-15.pdf 
Applicable Incorporation:  Information about reserve for operating, equipment 
replacement, capital projects and debt service payments. 

• San Bernardino Valley Regional Urban Water Management Plan 
https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/#sanbernardinovalleyregionalurbanwatermanageme
ntplan 
Applicable Incorporation:  District Profile section – history, geography, environmental, 
population, and demographic data. 

• West Valley Water District Water Facilities Master Plan and 5-Year Capital 
Improvement Program 
https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/#watermasterplanand5yearcapitalimprovementprog
ram 
Applicable Incorporation:  New development projections and 5-year capital improvement 
program. 

• Map of the District 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 94

https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/#annualoperatingandcapitalimprovementbudget
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/2019_West-Valley-Water-District_CAFR.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/2019_West-Valley-Water-District_CAFR.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/Reserve-Policy_Exhibit-A-Reso2015-10_7-16-15.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/Reserve-Policy_Exhibit-A-Reso2015-10_7-16-15.pdf
https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/#sanbernardinovalleyregionalurbanwatermanagementplan
https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/#sanbernardinovalleyregionalurbanwatermanagementplan
https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/#watermasterplanand5yearcapitalimprovementprogram
https://wvwd.org/about/transparency/#watermasterplanand5yearcapitalimprovementprogram


 

75  

https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-
content/uploads/2017/11/District-Service-Area.pdf 
Applicable Incorporation:  District boundary 

• District Standards and Drawings 
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-
content/uploads/2018/04/District-Standards-6_8_2016_1WVWD.pdf 
Applicable Incorporation:  Used to identify hazards and critical facilities. 

• Service Rules and Regulations 
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-
content/uploads/2018/02/WATER-SERVICE-RULES-AND-REGULATIONS-
ADOPTED-MAY-17-2018_WEB.pdf 
Applicable Incorporation:  District rules and regulations. 

• Water Valley Water District Water Use Efficiency Programs 
https://wvwd.org/conservation/ 
Applicable Incorporation:  Mitigation measures, conservation and rebate programs, 
outreach programs and drought update. 

• FEMA Local Mitigation Planning Handbook 
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-06/fema-local-mitigation-planning-
handbook_03-2013.pdf 
Applicable Incorporation:  FEMA hazard mitigation planning resources the Planning 
Team used as references.  

• Plan Integration:  Linking Local Planning Efforts 
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-06/fema-plan-integration_7-1-2015.pdf 
Applicable incorporation:  FEMA hazard mitigation planning resources the Planning 
Team used as references. 

• California Department of Conservation 
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs 
Applicable Incorporation:  Data and maps have been included for earthquake scenarios. 

• California Earthquake Authority 
https://www.earthquakeauthority.com/ 
Applicable Incorporation:  Data have been incorporated in the plan. 

• U.S. Geological Survey  
https://pubs.usgs.gov/fs/2015/3009/ 
Applicable Incorporation:  Earthquake records and statistics. 

• National Weather Service 
https://www.weather.gov/media/sgx/documents/weatherhistory.pdf 
Applicable Incorporation:  A history of significant weather events in Southern California 
organized by weather type. 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 95

https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/District-Service-Area.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/11/District-Service-Area.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/District-Standards-6_8_2016_1WVWD.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/District-Standards-6_8_2016_1WVWD.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/WATER-SERVICE-RULES-AND-REGULATIONS-ADOPTED-MAY-17-2018_WEB.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/WATER-SERVICE-RULES-AND-REGULATIONS-ADOPTED-MAY-17-2018_WEB.pdf
https://secureservercdn.net/50.62.195.83/n1s.6f9.myftpupload.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/02/WATER-SERVICE-RULES-AND-REGULATIONS-ADOPTED-MAY-17-2018_WEB.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/sites/default/files/2020-06/fema-plan-integration_7-1-2015.pdf
https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs
https://www.earthquakeauthority.com/
https://pubs.usgs.gov/fs/2015/3009/


 

76  

• Southern California Earthquake Center 
https://www.scec.org/ 
Applicable Incorporation:  Data have been incorporated in the plan. 

 
5.3 Regulations, Codes, Policies, and Ordinances 
The District adopted Amended Ordinance No. 80 Water Conservation Plan on August 6, 2015 
which established the policy and conservation measures needed during drought conditions. 

 
5.4 Mitigation Programs 
This section serves to identify the Previous Mitigation Plans, Projects and Actions: 

 
The District offers financial incentives to improve landscape water use efficiency. The District 
currently reviews the intended water usage of all new large water customers. They also provide 
non-potable industrial process water at a reduced rate. When non-potable sources are available, 
the District will use this source for development construction water such as imported water. 

 
As a condition of water service, all new structures shall be equipped with ultra-low-flush toilets 
(1.6 gallons per flush max) as per Section 17921.3 of the California Health and Safety Code. 

 
To promote voluntary conservation, the District has initiated a public awareness and education 
plan consisting of the following: 

 
• The District sponsors an annual poster coloring contest at local elementary schools where 

the students are required to draw a poster with a water conservation theme.   
• The District provide household water audit.  It is a water efficiency survey to assist 

customers access how much water is used and how much water can be saved in the 
home. 

• The District provides rebates to promote water conservation such as high efficiency toilet 
($50), high efficiency washing machine ($100), weather-based irrigation controllers 
($100), turf replacement ($1/sq. ft.) and high efficiency nozzle ($4). 

• Tours of the Oliver P. Roemer WFF are conducted with the local schools to educate 
today’s youths on water conservation and awareness. 

• The District distributes outreach materials including annual consumer confidence reports, 
triennial public health goal reports, newsletters, bill inserts, and social media posts to 
expand public awareness on water conservation, and drought update. 

• Pamphlets, brochures, and stickers are distributed stressing the reasonable utilization of 
resources and explain that the quality of life need not suffer from the use of conservation 
techniques. 

• The District provides each service customer with data on water use during the similar 
period from the previous year. Customers will use the data to informally evaluate the 
results of their conservation efforts taking into consideration climatic difference, exact 
billing period length, and any changes they have made to their households which could 
affect water consumption. 

 
For a full list of conservation programs or external links to get latest update on drought and 
related information, go to link https://wvwd.org/conservation/  

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 96

https://www.scec.org/


 

77  

 

 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 97



 

78  

 

 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 98



 

79  

 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 99



 

80  

 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 100



 

81  

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 101



 

82  

 
 

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 102



 

83  

 
 

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 103



 

84  

 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 104



 

85  

 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 105



 

86  

The District has an on-going Weed Abatement Program to manage weeds and brush and 
provided a defensible space for areas prone to fire due to high vegetation area.  Also, the 
District stores an earthquake supply bin at the Operations Yard for employees and families 
during an emergency. The supply bin is complete with cooking stove, pots, first aid kits, 
lanterns, blankets, propane, food, cameras, cots, etc. 
In the event of a catastrophic disaster, the District has mutual aid agreements with the 
Emergency Response Network of the Inland Empire group and the California 
Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance group to 
provide mutual aid and assistance to help jurisdictions respond to incidents that require 
resources beyond the capability of the local agency.   
 

5.5 Fiscal Resources 
Fiscal resources for the District include the following: 

 
Revenue from water sales 
Fees for new facilities from local developers 
Metering availability charge 
A percentage of local property taxes 
If necessary, local bond measures 

Through the California Department of Water Resources, local grants and/or loans are available 
for water conservation, groundwater management, and studies and activities to enhance local 
water supply reliability. Project eligibility depends on the type of organization(s) applying and 
participating in the project and the specific type of study or project. More than one grant or loan 
may be appropriate for a proposed activity. The following website lists the index of potential 
grants for the District: www.grantsloans.water.ca.gov/index.cfm. 

 
Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 
provides funding to state, local, tribal and territorial governments so they can rebuild in a way that 
reduces, or mitigates, future disaster losses in their communities.  This grant funding is available 
after a presidentially declared disaster.  Developing and adopting hazard mitigation plans, which 
ae required for state, local, tribal and territorial governments to receive funding for the hazard 
mitigation projects.  The HMGP can fund a wide variety of mitigation projects which include 
elevating structures above known flood levels to prevent and reduce losses, reconstructing a 
damaged dwelling on an elevated foundation to prevent and reduce future flood losses, structural 
retrofits to make a building more resistant to floods, earthquakes, wind, wildfire and other natural 
hazards, retrofits to utilities and other infrastructure to enhance resistance to natural hazards, slope 
stabilization projects to prevent and reduce losses to structures, drainage improvement projects to 
reduce flooding.  The following website lists eligible HMGPs:  
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/hazard-mitigation 
 
 

   
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 106

http://www.grantsloans.water.ca.gov/index.cfm
https://www.fema.gov/grants/mitigation/hazard-mitigation


 

87  

Section 6: Mitigation Strategies 
 

 

6.1 Overview 
The purpose of this analysis was to identify projects (actions) that helped the District to meet the 
Goals and Objective for each priority hazard. By going through this process, the District has 
identified hazards in our community, assessed which hazards pose the most significant risk, and 
identified projects to help reduce and/or eliminate the risk. 

 
6.2 Mitigation 5-Year Progress Report 
The District’s Planning Team reviewed each of the projects from the 2011 HMP and discussed 
the status of each project and the reasons for why they had or had not been implemented. This 
updated 2021 HMP identifies the completed, deleted, or deferred actions or activities from the 
2011 HMP approved plan as a benchmark for progress. 
The plan update provides an opportunity for the District to reconsider the range of specific 
actions. 

 
Further, the updated plan includes in its prioritization, any new mitigation actions identified 
since the previous plan was approved or through the plan update process. 
 

6.3 Mitigation Goals, Objectives, and Projects 
The process of identifying goals began with a review and validation of the Goals and 
Objectives in the District’s 2021 HMP. Using the 2011 HMP as the basis, the District’s 
planning team completed an assessment/discussion of whether each of the goals was still valid. 
This discussion also led to the opportunity to identify new goals and objectives. 
Also, the 2020 Water Master Plan was used as a guide for mitigation objectives and projects. 

 
The two high profile hazards for the District are drought and earthquake. While other hazards 
were profiled in previous sections, the District’s priority and focus for the mitigation projects 
will be for only the two high profile hazards. 

 
 
‘ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 107



 

88  

6.3.1 All Hazards 
Description: Goal is to save lives and reduce injuries. Many local laws have public safety of 
citizens as their primary concern. Protecting lives is also the basis for emergency planning, 
response, and mitigation activities. 

 
Objectives: 

 
• Establish a basis for coordination and collaboration among agencies and the public 

within the District’s service area. 
• Construct facilities to increase operational readiness to reduce impacts of natural hazards. 
• Install generators at critical facilities as backup power to utility power, including wells, 

treatment plants, and booster stations. 
• Develop a Water Systems Repair Plan for speeding the repair of and functional 

restoration of water system through stockpiling of shoring materials, temporary pumps, 
surface pipelines, portable hydrants, and other supplies. 

• Utilize smart water meters and supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) to get 
real time data on problems with the system and reduce drive time emissions as a result of 
traditional meter reading. 

• Provide District staff with emergency supplies at office and field locations. 
• Continually improve the understanding of the location and potential impacts of natural 

hazards, the vulnerability of building types, and community development patterns and the 
measures needed to protect life safety. 

• Continually provide state and local agencies with updated information about hazards, 
vulnerabilities, and mitigation measures. 

• Ensure that all local codes and standards ensure the protection of life. 
• Ensure that all structures in the District meet minimum standards for life safety. 
• Ensure that all development in high-risk areas is protected by mitigation measures that 

provide for life safety. 
• Identify and mitigate all imminent threats to life safety. 

6.3.2 Earthquakes 
Description: Goal is to avoid damages to property. The District agreed that the strengthening of 
building, mechanical, and fire codes is critical to the protection of property and life and the 
reduction of seismic risk, fire and flood hazards. These codes help water utilities design and 
construct reservoirs, pump stations, groundwater wells, and pipelines that resist the forces of 
nature and ensure safety. 

 
Objectives: 

 
• Discourage development in high hazard areas. 
• Encourage property protection measures for all communities and 

structures located in hazard areas. 
• Reduce or eliminate all repetitive property losses due to flood, fire and earthquake. 
• Research, develop, and adopt cost-effective codes and standards to protect properties 

beyond the minimum of protecting life safety. 
• Establish a partnership among all levels of government and the business community to 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 108



 

89  

improve and implement methods to protect property. 
 

Mitigation Projects:  
 

• Reservoir Seismic Valves with Actuators – In case of an earthquake, the electric valve 
operating units triggered by a seismic instrument to close or partially close isolation valves 
on reservoirs to prevent the total loss of the water and to prevent the damage that could be 
caused by the release of that water. 
 

• Retrofit Steel Reservoir Inlet Seismic Retrofit – Retrofit the inlet/outlet with a swivel 
joint to allow movement during an earthquake.  This will limit the damage from the 
reservoirs bursting/twisting and flooding property downstream of them.   

 
• Concrete Footing Reservoir Seismic Retrofit – Construct a concrete ring around the 

outside of the tank that would be bolted and anchored to the tank, similar to a large 
concrete footing.  This would protect the tank from a lateral earthquake and the properties 
downstream of the tank from being flooded if the tank were to rip open during an 
earthquake.  

 
• Pipeline Material Seismic Retrofit – Asbestos cement (AC) pipeline is known to be the 

most susceptible to earthquake damage.  Since the District has approximately 140 miles of 
AC pipeline (approximately 48 percent of the total District’s pipelines are AC material) to 
mitigate potential pipeline failure due to earthquake.  This project would replace sections of 
a large transmission pipeline that is already known to be in poor condition.  The initial 
project would replace the Cactus/Riverside Transmission main (approximately 5 miles in 
length), which is currently AC pipe, with steel pipe to minimize the effects of an 
earthquake on the pipeline.  The transmission main starts at Cedar Street, continues along 
Riverside Avenue southeasterly until Cactus Avenue, where the pipeline turns south and 
continues in Cactus Avenue until Merrill Avenue. 
The implementation strategy is to complete the replacement in phases, by diameter size, 
starting with the largest diameter (30-inch) pipeline first, located at Cactus Street and 
Merrill Street.  Work upstream toward the treatment plant along Cactus Street and then 
Riverside Avenue.  The transmission main contains 18, 24, and 30-inch diameter pipe. 
 

• Emergency Generators for the Fluidized Bed Reactor Treatment Plant and its’ 
associated Rialto Well 6 – This project allows a critical treatment facility and the 
groundwater source that this facility receives water from (Rialto Well 6) to remain online 
during power outages from earthquakes, weather related outages, or any other power 
system failures.  The project will include the purchase and installation of a 400kW fixed 
diesel generator and an automatic transfer switch at each of the two facilities in this project. 

 
6.3.3 Drought 
Description: Goal is to improve drought preparedness. The goal is to address 
the drought hazard through mitigation over the long-term and the objectives listed below have 
been taken from the recently updated California Water Plan (2018). 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 109



 

90  

Objectives: 
 

• Increase water supply by creating innovative ways to generate new supplies. 
• Improve operational efficiency & transfers by moving water from where it occurs to 

where it will be used. 
• Reduce Water Demand.  Water conservation has become a viable long-term supply 

option because it saves considerable capital and operating cost for the District. 
• Improve Water Quality.   

 
Mitigation Projects: 
 

• Expand Water Treatment Plant – Expand the water treatment plant from treating 14.5 
million gallons a day of State Water Project (SWP) water to treating 20.5 million gallons a 
day.  
 

• Complete the Fluidized Bed Bioreactor (FBR) Project – Add additional water supply 
by installing groundwater source treatment system to an out-of-service groundwater well 
with a capacity of producing 2,000 gallons a minute and to clean up the perchlorate plume 
in the region. 
 

• Lytle Creek Basin Artificial Recharge – Construct Lytle Creek Basin Recharge facilities 
that would enable the spreading of State Water Project water for recharge of the Lytle 
Creek Basin.  The project would consist of a pipeline connected to the State Project  
Water pipeline that feeds the District’s Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility, 
downstream of the District’s Hydroelectric Generation Facility, to detention basins for 
surface water spreading. 
 

• Rialto Basin Artificial Recharge - The District and other members of the Rialto Basin 
Groundwater Council’s Basin Technical Advisory Committee are working on a 
Groundwater Management Plan that will facilitate the spreading of State Water Project 
water for recharge of the Rialto Basin.  The San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water 
District (Valley District) is constructing a pipeline to the Cactus Basins to allow State 
Project Water to be recharged into the Rialto Basin by surface water spreading.  Valley 
District is working with the San Bernardino County Flood Control District to enhance the 
Cactus Basins.  
  

• Construct new Groundwater Well 36 – Well 36 was drilled, not equipped.  High nitrate 
and arsenic levels have been detected and endangered species were presented.  Drill a new 
well to replace Well 36. 
 

• Construct new Groundwater Well in the City of Fontana – The District’s service area 
in the City of Fontana has only one groundwater well serving about 1,400 service 
connections.  As the area is being developed, water demands will increase.  The District is 
looking into drilling a new well in the City of Fontana to meet future water demands and 
add redundancy.  
 

• Smart Water Meters and Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 110



 

91  

Utilization- SCADA and Smart Water Meters give real time data on problems with the 
system and they reduce drive time emissions as a result of traditional meter reading. 
SCADA improvement is included as part of the Water Treatment Plant Expansion project. 
The District implemented an Automatic Meter Reading System (AMR).  AMR allows for 
collection of data using a radio receiver in a truck as staff drive up and down each street. 
With Advanced Metering Infrastructure Systems, (AMI), reads are sent to receiver that is 
mounted on a tower, (there would be several throughout the District’s service area). Those 
reads can be sent at regular intervals, (for example every 15 minutes), or staff can send a 
signal to collect it on demand. This is even more time efficient than AMR. It also provides 
staff with the ability to collect much more reading data that can be used to identified 
possible leaks, to generate more customized reports for customers regarding their usage, 
and the data will be valuable for the District as the State of California continues 
conservation efforts. The time savings associated with not having to drive up and down 
each street to collect reads will allow the staff to focus on maintaining the meters and 
providing better service to our customer.      
 

6.3.4 Flood 
 

Description: Provide adequate flood protection to minimize hazards and structural damage. 
 
Objectives: 
 
• Future Flood Mitigation Projects – Improve existing facilities and construct new facilities to 
mitigate flooding within District’s service area.  
 
Mitigation Projects: 
 

• Construct New Wells with Flush-to-Waste Pipe - Many existing wells flush to waste 
into the street, flooding the street, then the water travels approximately a mile to a nearby 
storm drain.  This project will eliminate flooding local streets. 
 

• Purchase a Hydro Excavator Vacuum Truck – This equipment would improve 
efficiency in repairing service leaks and main breaks and more preventive maintenance 
tasks could be completed. 

 
The District is not a member of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and is fortunate to 
not have any identified Repetitive and Severe Repetitive Loss properties. 
 
6.4 Mitigation Priorities 
The District’s implementation strategy included identifying a set of first tier objectives. These 
objectives are considered the highest priority and once implemented will result in substantial 
improvement in the overall reliability of the system. The remaining objectives, not included in 
the first-tier objectives, are considered desirable and will further enhance the system reliability 
once the first-tier objectives are achieved. 

 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 111



 

92  

The District’s objectives have then been prioritized based on the following: 
 

• Impact to the District’s system from the identified vulnerability. This was the planning 
team’s decision and they included cost in the decision. 

 
• Overall cost/benefit of the mitigation strategy. For example, the Seismic Retrofits to 

the District’s facilities is considered a high priority because of very high benefit to 
cost ratio. 

 

6.5 Implementation Strategy 
For the successful mitigation of hazards identified in this plan and to meet the District’s goals 
within a reasonable time frame, an implementation strategy has been developed.  
The District developed a matrix for the mitigation implementation strategy as a useful tool that 
consolidated and tracked mitigation actions. The implementation strategy focuses on the high 
priority mitigation projects that can be implemented during the five-year plan cycle thru the 
District’s Capital Improvement Program.  The HMP provides a series of recommendations, 
many of which are closely related to the goals and objectives of existing planning programs.  
The District will continue to implement recommended mitigation action items through existing 
programs and procedures.   
For each project, the benefits and costs were identified by the Planning Team and then each 
project was prioritized. The benefits included the estimated risk reduction, District’s goals, 
available funding and ease of implementation. 
The District Engineering Department is responsible for adhering to the State of California’s 
Building and Safety Codes.  The Planning Team will work with other agencies at the state level 
to review, develop and ensure Building and Safety Codes are adequate to mitigate or present 
damage by hazards.   
Since the approval of the 2011 HMP, there were mitigation action items that were funded and 
completed.  The Planning Team is committed to meet on a regular basis to seize funding 
opportunities and integration with other planning mechanisms that can bring the mitigation 
plan to life.  During those regular meetings, the Planning Team department representatives will 
identify areas that the HMP action items are consistent with the Capital Improvement Program 
or annual budget goals and integrate them where appropriate.  Other opportunities for 
integration including public awareness publications and staff training relating to hazard 
information. 
 
Table 12: Mitigation Actions Matrix 
Summarizes past mitigation projects from the 2011 HMP, and existing and future mitigation 
projects developed by the Planning Team for the 2021 HMP. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 112



 

93  

Table 12:  Mitigation Actions Matrix 
 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
Ite

m
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
A

ge
nc

y 

Ti
m

el
in

e 

G
oa

l: 
Sa

ve
 L

iv
es

 a
nd

 R
ed

uc
e 

In
ju

rie
s 

G
oa

l: 
 A

vo
id

 D
am

ag
es

 to
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

G
oa

l: 
 Im

pr
ov

e 
dr

ou
gh

t p
re

pa
re

dn
es

s 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 &

 In
fr

as
tru

ct
ur

e:
  D

oe
s t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
ite

m
 in

vo
lv

e 
ne

w
/o

r e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
 o

r i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e?

 Y
es

/N
o 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:  

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d,
 G

ra
nt

, C
IP

 

B
en

ef
it:

  L
ow

 (L
), 

M
ed

iu
m

 (M
), 

H
ig

h 
(H

) 

C
os

t: 
 L

ow
 (L

), 
M

ed
iu

m
 (M

), 
H

ig
h 

(H
) 

Pr
io

rit
y:

  L
ow

 (L
), 

M
ed

iu
m

 (M
), 

H
ig

h 
(H

) 

C
om

m
en

ts
:  

C
om

pl
et

ed
, D

ef
er

re
d,

 D
el

et
ed

, n
ew

, R
ev

is
ed

, 
C

os
t e

st
im

at
es

 fr
om

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

2011 Mitigation Projects 

Seismic retrofitting 
the inlet/outlet of 
steel reservoirs with 
swivel joints to 
allow movement 
during earthquakes 

Operations- 
Production; 
Engineering; 
Public Affairs; 
Government 
Relations 

3-5 Years X X X Yes Grant; 
CIP H M H Deferred; 

$950K 

Comments: This project has not been completed.  The District worked on the draft 2016 HMP Update, 
but did not finish.  Without a 2016 HMP, the District missed opportunities for potential grants that could 
fund this project.  Due to other priorities, this project was not funded by general and CIP funds in 
previous years. 

Seismic retrofitting 
the reservoir footing 

Operations- 
Production; 
Engineering; 
Public Affairs; 
Government 
Relations 

3-5 Years X X X Yes Grant; 
CIP H H H Deferred; 

$4.5M 

Comments:  This project has not been completed.  The District worked on the draft 2016 HMP Update, 
but did not finish.  Without a 2016 HMP, the District missed opportunities for potential grants that could 
fund this project.  Due to other priorities, this project was not funded by general and CIP funds in 
previous years. 

Pipeline Material 
Seismic Retrofit 

Operations-
Production; 
Engineering; 
public Affairs; 
Government 
Relations 

3-5 Years X X X  Yes Grant; 
CIP M H M Deferred; 

$5M 

Comments:  This project has not started.  Will be budgeted in Fiscal Year 2022/23 CIP budget. 

Expand the Oliver 
P. Roemer Water 
Filtration Plant 

Engineering-
New 
Development; 
Operations- 

2-3 
Years   X Yes 

Grant; 
Bonds;  
CIP 

H H H 

Ongoing; 
$45M; 
project 
initiated in 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 113



 

94  

Water 
Treatment 

2020 

Comments:  The project has initiated in 2020.  The District has applied for an over $24 million Water 
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) load for this project. 

Construct New 
Groundwater Wells:  
Wells 55, 49, & 50 

Engineering; 
Public Affairs; 
Operations-
Production 

3-5 Years   X Yes Grant; 
CIP M M M Deleted 

Comments:  These new well projects had been deleted.  The District was not able to purchase property 
to drill Well 55.  Well 49 has high nitrate levels; the District seeks other wells without the need for 
source treatment.  The District was not able to purchase property to drill Well 50. 

Construct New 
Groundwater well:  
36 

Engineering; 
Public Affairs; 
Operations- 
Production 

3-5 Years   X Yes Grant; 
CIP M M M Ongoing; 

$3.5M 

Comments:  Well 36 was drilled, detected high nitrate and arsenic levels, and endangered species were 
presented.  Drill a new well to replace Well 36.  Budgeted $300K in Fiscal Year 2021/22 CIP budget to 
perform initial study. 

Construct a 
Fluidized Bed 
Bioreactor (FBR) 
Water Treatment 
Plant 

Engineering- 
Capital 
Improvement 
Project; 
Operations- 
Water 
Treatment 

Completed   X Yes 
Grant; 
Gen. 
Fund 

H H H Completed; 
$22.7M 

Comments:  The FBR Water Treatment has been online treating water since 2016. 

Lytle Creek Basin 
Artificial  

Engineering- 
New 
Development; 
Operations- 
Production; 

2-4 Years   X No 

Grant; 
Gen. 
Fund; 
CIP 

M M M Ongoing; 
$1M 

Comments:  The District is currently working on a project with the San Bernardino Valley Municipal 
Water District (Valley District) and the City of Rialto to construct Lytle Creek Basin Recharge facilities 
that would enable the spreading of State Water Project (SWP) water for recharge of the Lytle Creek 
Basin.  Valley District has modified the Lytle Creek Turnout connection on the San Gabriel Feeder 
Pipeline.  The project would consist of a pipeline connected to the State Project Water pipeline that feeds 
the District’s Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility, downstream of the District’s Hydroelectric 
Generation Facility, to detention basins for surface water spreading. 

Rialto Basin 
Artificial Recharge 

Engineering-
New 
Development; 
Operations- 
Production 

2-4 Years   X No  
Gen. 
Fund; 
CIP 

M M M Ongoing; 
$1.5M 

Comments:  The District and other members of the Rialto Basin Groundwater Council’s Basin 
Technical Advisory Committee are working on a Groundwater Management Plan that will facilitate the 
spreading of State Water Project water for recharge of the Rialto Basin.  The San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District (Valley District) is constructing a pipeline to the Cactus Basins to allow State 
Project Water to be recharged into the Rialto Basin by surface water spreading.  Valley District is 
working with the San Bernardino County Flood Control District to enhance the Cactus Basins.   

2021 HMP Mitigation Projects 

Construct New 
Groundwater Well 

Engineering; 
Public Affairs; 
Operations- 
Production 

3-5 Years   X Yes Grant; 
CIP M M M Ongoing; 

$3M 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 114



 

95  

Comments:  The District’s service area in the City of Fontana has only one groundwater well serving 
about 1,400 service connections.  As the area is being developed, and to add redundancy to the existing 
groundwater well, the District is looking to drill a new well in the City of Fontana. 

Seismic Retrofitting 
Reservoir Valves 
with Actuators 

Operations- 
Production;  
Operations- 
Distribution; 
Public Affairs 

3-5 Years X X X Yes Grant; 
CIP H M H Ongoing; 

$300K 

Comments:  This project was identified and added in 2016. A Notice of Intent (NOI) was submitted to 
the Cal OES office in 2016.  The District did not have an approved HMP in 2016.  The Public Affairs 
team is looking for grant opportunities to fund this project. 

Purchase a Hydro 
Excavator Vacuum 
Truck 

Operations; 
Purchasing 1 Year X X X No CIP H M H 

Ongoing; 
Received 
bids; $415K 

Comments:  This project was identified and added in 2020.  The District received 3 bids for the 
purchase of a hydro excavator vacuum truck.  This item was budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2021/22 CIP 
budget. Pending Board approval. 

Construct new 
well(s) with flush-to-
waste pipe connects 
to the City’s sewage 
system or storm 
drain system. 

Engineering; 
Operations 3-5 Years X X X Yes CIP H M H Ongoing 

Comments: This project was identified and added in 2020.  The District has established standards to 
have new wells constructed with a flush-to-waste pipe that connects to the City’s sewage system or 
storm drain system. 

Emergency 
Generators for the 
Fluidized Bed 
Reactor Treatment 
Plant and its 
associated Rialto 
Well 6 

Engineering; 
Operations- 
Production; 
Public Affairs 

3-5 Years   X Yes Grant M M M Ongoing; 
$480K 

Comments:  This project was identified and added in 2019.  A Notice of Intent (NOI) was submitted to 
the Cal OES office in 2019.  The District did not have an approved HMP in 2019.  The Public Affairs 
team is looking for grant opportunities to fund this project. 

Utilize Smart Water 
meters, advanced 
metering 
infrastructure 
(AMI) 

General Services; 
 Meter Dept. 15 Years X X X Yes Grant; 

CIP M H M 
Ongoing; 
Phase I 
$200K 

Comments:  Phase I costs about $200K, which covers the cost of infrastructure (towers) and software. 
The cost for the radio transmitters is to be determined.  The District currently has about 23,000 meters.   
Of the 23,000 meters, about 4,000 are compatible using AMI.  

 
Section 7: Plan Maintenance 

 

 

7.1 Monitoring, Evaluating and Updating the Plan 

Plan Last Updated On: March 2011. 
 

Description of Plan Maintenance Procedures: Because the Plan is a living document that reflects 
the District’s ongoing hazard mitigation activities, the process of monitoring, evaluating, and 
updating it will be critical to the effectiveness of hazard mitigation in the District’s area. 

 
The high priority mitigation actions are being included in the District’s CIP. Because of the 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 115



 

96  

involvement of the District’s General Manager in the development of the Plan, the entire 
executive management of the District is committed to implement the goals and objectives of the 
plan. 

 
The District will incorporate the hazard mitigation plan in its annual CIP planning process to 
monitor progress towards the goals of the hazard mitigation plan. To further facilitate this 
process, the District’s General Manager has been identified as the person responsible for 
monitoring and updating the hazard mitigation plan. This plan will be updated every five years. 
The District will also update the plan if there is a significant change in the basic assumptions, for 
example a major hazard event that highlights vulnerabilities in the system not anticipated at the 
present time. The District’s Board of Director’s will review and recommend for approval any 
plan updates proposed by the planning team. 
 
The Planning Team will meet on an annually basis to review the status of the mitigation action 
items.  These meetings will provide an opportunity to discuss the progress of the action items 
and maintain the partnerships that are essential for the sustainability of the mitigation plan. The 
Annual Implementation Report is used to track status of mitigation projects.   
 
The Annual Implementation Report is the same as the Mitigation Action Matrix but with a 
column added to track the quarterly status of each action item.  Upon formal approval and 
adoption of the plan, the Annual Implementation Report will be added to the Appendix of the 
Plan.  Following is a sample of the Annual Implementation Report. 
 

Annual Implementation Report 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
A

ct
io

n 
Ite

m
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
A

ge
nc

y 

Ti
m

el
in

e 

G
oa

l: 
Sa

ve
 L

iv
es

 a
nd

 R
ed

uc
e 

In
ju

rie
s 

G
oa

l: 
 A

vo
id

 D
am

ag
es

 to
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

G
oa

l: 
 Im

pr
ov

e 
dr

ou
gh

t p
re

pa
re

dn
es

s 

B
ui

ld
in

gs
 &

 In
fr

as
tru

ct
ur

e:
  D

oe
s t

he
 a

ct
io

n 
ite

m
 

in
vo

lv
e 

ne
w

/o
r e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
ild

in
gs

 o
r i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e?
 

Y
es

/N
o 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:  

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d,
 G

ra
nt

, C
IP

 

B
en

ef
it:

  L
ow

 (L
), 

M
ed

iu
m

 (M
), 

H
ig

h 
(H

) 

C
os

t: 
 L

ow
 (L

), 
M

ed
iu

m
 (M

), 
H

ig
h 

(H
) 

Pr
io

rit
y:

  L
ow

 (L
), 

M
ed

iu
m

 (M
), 

H
ig

h 
(H

) 

C
om

m
en

ts
:  

C
om

pl
et

ed
, D

ef
er

re
d,

 D
el

et
ed

, n
ew

, 
R

ev
is

ed
, C

os
t e

st
im

at
es

 fr
om

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 

A
nn

ua
l S

ta
tu

s C
om

m
en

ts
 

Seismic 
retrofitting the 
inlet/outlet of 
steel reservoirs 
with swivel 
joints to allow 
movement 
during 
earthquakes 

Operations- 
Production; 
Engineering; 
Public 
Affairs; 
Government 
Relations 

3-5 
Years X X X Yes Grant; 

CIP H M H 

D
ef

er
re

d;
 $

95
0K

 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 116



 

97  

 
7.2 Implementation through Existing Programs  

The District currently documents the comprehensive land use planning and capital improvements 
planning using a Water Master Plan, which was last updated by the District in 2020. In general, 
the District’s Water Master Plan is updated every 5-10 years, along with the updated land use 
plans and recommended capital improvement programs. 

 
After the District officially adopts the HMP, the District will use the Water Master Plan 
mechanism to have the mitigation strategies integrated into it. Specifically, the capital 
improvement planning that occurs in the future will contribute to the goals in the Hazard 
Mitigation Plan. The planning team for the HMP will work with the capital improvement 
planners to implement high benefit/low-cost mitigation projects. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 117



 

98  

 

Table 13:  Capital Improvement Program 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 118



 

99  

 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 119



 

100  

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 120



 

101  

7.3 Continued Public Involvement 
As discussed in Section 3.3, the District will continue to involve the public during the plan 
maintenance process over the next five years. The District, with its decision to incorporate the 
hazard mitigation plan in its yearly CIP planning process, has ensured continued public 
involvement in this plan. The CIP approval is an open public process. As part of the approval 
process the CIP is presented to the District’s Board of Directors in an open public meeting and 
by virtue of this, progress towards achieving the District’s goals and objectives identified in 
the hazard mitigation plan will also be open for public review and comment. 

 
The District will continue to provide educational information to the public on our website to aid 
in conserving water to keep people informed of the drought hazard. All of our energy saving and 
conservation saving device suggestions such as ultra-low-flush toilets will continue to be 
announced and explained on our website and in our newsletters, so the public is kept updated on 
the drought and other hazards. The District is dedicated to involving the public directly in the 
continual review and updates to the Mitigation Plan.  Copies of the plan will be catalogued and 
made available at District Headquarters.  The existence and location of these copies will be 
publicized in the District newsletter and on the District’s website.  This site will also contain an 
email address and phone number where people can direct their comments and concerns.  The 
primary point of contact for information regarding this plan is Joanne Chan.   

 
Joanne Chan 
Director of Operations 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line, P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
(909) 820-3707 (Office) 
jchan@wvwd.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 121

mailto:jchan@wvwd.org


 

102  

Appendix A 

Planning Process & Public Involvement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 122



 

103  

Appendix A: Planning Process & Public Involvement 
 

 

A.1 Planning Process 
The District’s planning team meetings and coordination with other jurisdictions meetings 
consisted of the following: 

 
Date Activity 

3-2-2021 Meeting - Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Kick-Off Meeting with the 
Planning Team 

3-15-2021 Meeting - Local Mitigation Plan Technical Workshop with the Planning 
Team and Cal OES Division 

            3-29-2021 Meeting – Local Mitigation Plan Planning Meeting 
                  4-2-2021 Meeting – Local Mitigation Plan Planning Meeting 
                4-22-2021 Meeting -  Planning Team Comment on First Draft 
 Meeting - 
 Meeting - 
 Meeting 
 Meeting 
 Meeting – 

 
 
Planning Team Attendance Sheets 
 
3-2-21 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Kick-Off Meeting 
The kick-off meeting with the Planning Team was made up of key departmental representatives.  The 
purpose of the kickoff meeting was to review project expectations and timeline, gather pertinent 
documents, role and membership of Planning Team, review updates to DMA 2000 regulations, discuss 
availability of resources, and discuss opportunities for public involvement.   
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 123



 

104  

 
3-15-21 Local Mitigation Plan Technical Workshop with the Planning Team and Cal OES Division 
The Planning Team reviewed key sections of the HMP and comments received from the office of Cal 
OES with the Emergency Services Coordinator of Cal OES.  The Planning Team received guidance and 
from the Coordinator.  
 

 
 
3-29-21 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Planning Meeting 
Continued to develop mitigation action items.  Contributed considerable time and research to gathering 
all on-going and budgeted items and maps relating to hazard mitigation activities.  Reviewed and 
revised mitigation projects from the 2011 HMP. 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 124



 

105  

 
4-5-2021 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Planning Meeting 
Continued to discuss and develop mitigation action items and potential mitigation projects.  Added 
information about District Water Use Efficiency programs to the HMP and added external links on 
water and drought updates on District’s website. 
 

 
 
4-22-2021 Review First Draft Plan 
In advance of the meeting, the Draft HMP was sent to the Planning Team for review.  The Planning 
Team discussed questions, corrections, and comments in need of attention and discussed outreach 
strategies. 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 125



 

106  

A.2 Public Involvement/Outreach 
In addition to the planning team, District staff, the secondary stakeholders also provided 
information, expertise, and other resources during plan writing phase.  The secondary stakeholders 
included: general public (rate payers) and external agencies (special districts and neighboring 
water systems and cities).  The public comment period went from April 27, 2021 to June 11, 2021.  
No public comments received. 
Other public involvement consisted of the following meetings: 
 

Date Activity 
     5-11-2021 Meeting – May 2021 Safety and Technology Committee  

              5-12-2021             Meeting – May 2021 Engineering, Planning & Operations Committee  
               Meeting –  
               Meeting - 
 Meeting - 
 Meeting - 
 Meeting - 
 Meeting - 
 Meeting - 

 
 
 
External agencies were sent the second draft HMP in April 2021 and encouraged to provide input. 
See attachment for the letter template sent along with solicitation for input.  No public comments 
received. 
 
External Agency  Name Position Title 
San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District  

Wen Huang Chief Engineer/AGM 

San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District 

Cindy Saks  CFO/AGM 

Jurupa Community Service 
District 

Chander Letulle  Director of Engineering and 
Operations 

Rialto Water Services Stephanee Valencia Operations Supervisor 
Veolia Chipper R. Greene Industrial Pretreatment 

Program Coordinator 
Marygold Mutual Water 
Company 

Justin Brokaw General Manager 

Rubidoux Community 
Services District 

Jeff Sims General Manager 

San Bernardino County James McKenzie, Jr. Groundwater Recharge 
Coordinator 

Riverside Highland Water 
Company 

Don Hough General Manager 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 126



 

107  

 
 

 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 127



 

108  

 
 
Web Postings and Notices for Public Input – 4/27/2021 – 6/11/2021 
 

 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 128



 

109  

 

 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 129



 

110  

Mailing for Public Input – 4/27/2021 to 6/11/2021 
 
21,976 billing letters were sent out to customers between 4/28/2021 and 5/25/2021.   
See summary below: 
 

 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 130



 

111  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 131



 

112  

Appendix B 

                                  Earthquake Profile 
 
             
          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 132



 

113  

 
 

Appendix B: Earthquake Profile 
 

 

B.1 Probability of Earthquakes 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B.2 Probabilistic Seismic Hazards Mapping Ground Motion 

The following information was obtained from the California Department of Conservation 
Geological Survey website at www.consrv.ca.gov/CGS. 

 
User Selected Site 

 

Longitude -117.387 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 133

http://www.consrv.ca.gov/CGS


 

114  

Latitude 34.1136 
 

Ground Motions for West Valley Water District Service Area Site 
Ground motions (10% probability of being exceeded in 50 years) are expressed as a fraction of 
the acceleration due to gravity (G). Three values of ground motion are shown, peak ground 
acceleration (PGA), spectral acceleration (SA) at short (0.2 second) and moderately long (1.0 
second) periods. Ground motion values are also modified by the local site soil conditions. Each 
ground motion value is shown for 3 different site conditions: firm rock (conditions on the 
boundary between site categories B and C as defined by the building code), soft rock (site 
category C) and alluvium (site category D). 

 

Ground Motion Firm Rock Soft Rock Alluvium 

PGA 0.856 0.856 0.856 

Sa 0.2 sec 2.036 2.036 2.036 

Sa 1.0 sec 0.81 0.916 1.057 

NEHRP Soil Corrections were used to calculate Soft Rock and Alluvium. 
Ground Motion values were interpolated from a grid (0.05 degree spacing) 
of calculated values. Interpolated ground motion may not equal values 
calculated for a specific site, therefore these values are not intended for 
design or analysis. 

 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 134



 

115  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 135



 

116  

B.3 Map of Southern California Faults 
The following information was obtained from the Southern California Earthquake Data Center. 
Website at www.data.scec.org/faults/sofault.html. On the website, each fault can be clicked on 
and a description of the fault is then shown. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 136

http://www.data.scec.org/faults/sofault.html


 

117  

 
 
 

Draft Hazard Mitigation Plan Report, West Valley Water District B-5 
 
 
 
 
 

  

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 137



 

118  

B.5 Map of Previous Earthquakes in Southern California 
The following information was obtained from the Southern California Earthquake Data Center. 

 
Below is a map of Southern California, with epicenters of historic earthquakes, dating as far 
back as 1812). Major highways (in tan) and the surface traces of major faults (in greenish- 
blue). 

 
This map does not show the epicenters of all earthquakes greater than magnitude 4.5 recorded in 
the southern California area since the 19th century. It is meant as an overview of large and 
destructive, fairly recent, or unusual earthquakes. The magnitudes given by the scale are 
generally moment magnitudes (denoted Mw), for earthquakes above magnitude 6, and local 
magnitudes (denoted ML), for most earthquakes below magnitude 6 and for earthquakes which 
occurred before accurate instrumental measurements of magnitude were possible (i.e. before 
1933). 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Draft Hazard Mitigation Plan Report, West Valley Water District B-6 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2.d

Packet Pg. 138



2.4.a

Packet Pg. 139



2.4.a

Packet Pg. 140



IVIE McNEILL WYATT 
PURCELL & DIGGS 

 
   
 

Bill to:   West Valley Water District 
   855 West Base Line Road 
   Rialto, California, 92376 

Invoice No:  744987
Dated:  08/13/2021
File No:  8007007 
File Name: Romero v WVWD 

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 Total Fees:  $16,212.50 

 Total Costs:        98.95
 $16,311.45 

2.5.a

Packet Pg. 141



2.6.a

Packet Pg. 142



2.7.a

Packet Pg. 143



HUNT ORTMANN PALFFY NIEVES
DARLING & MAH, INC.

301 N. LAKE AVE
7TH FLOOR

PASADENA, CA 91101
(626) 440-5200

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
Attn: Accounts Payable
P.O. BOX 190
RIALTO, CA 92377

August 18, 2021

Account # 7473.002
Invoice # 89241

In Reference to:  Contracts

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED THROUGH 07/31/2021 SUMMARY OF FEES AND
COSTS:

Total Fees:  $11,607.00

Total Costs:         $0.00

Total Balance Due  $11,607.00

2.8.a

Packet Pg. 144


	Agenda Packet
	ROLL CALL
	Roll Call

	OPENING CEREMONIES
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Opening Prayer
	Call to Order
	Roll Call of Board Members

	ADOPT AGENDA
	PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	I. PRESENTATION
	II. CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. 2823 : August 5, 2021 - Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	a. August 5, 2021 - Minutes

	2. 2825 : 2021 HMP Adoption
	Printout: 2825 : 2021 HMP Adoption
	a. Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-21
	b. Exhibit B - Cal OES Letter
	c. Exhibit C - FEMA Letter
	d. Exhibit D - 2021 HMP

	3. Adopt Resolution No. 2021-21 - ADOPTING THE 2021 HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN
	4. 2826 : Letter of Support to Representative Norma Torres for Sponsoring the H.R. 3470, Myles Edward Scott
	a. Norma Torres Letter of Support

	5. 2829 : IMW Invoice No. 744987
	a. Invoice 744987  Summary

	6. 2828 : LCW Invoice No. 1516633
	a. LCW Invoice #1516633

	7. 2827 : LCW Invoice No. 1518522
	a. LCW Invoice #1518522

	8. 2830 : Hunt Ortmann Palffy Nieves Darling & Mah, Inc. Invoice No. 89241
	a. Hunt Ortmann Summary-89241 (002)


	III. PUBLIC HEARING
	IV. BUSINESS MATTERS
	V. REPORTS
	1. Board Members
	2. Legal Counsel
	3. General Manager

	VI. UPCOMING MEETINGS
	1. September 6, 2021 – District Offices will be CLOSED in Observance of Labor Day.
	2. September 7, 2021 – San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Regular Board Meeting at 2:00 p.m., 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, CA 92408.
	3. September 8, 2021 - West Valley Water District Finance Committee Meeting at 1:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	4. September 8, 2021 - West Valley Water District Engineering, Operations & Planning Committee at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	5. September 9, 2021 - West Valley Water District External Affairs Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	6. September 13, 2021 - West Valley Water District Human Resources Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	7. September 14, 2021 – West Valley Water District Safety & Technology Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.
	8. September 16, 2021 – West Valley Water District Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 6:45 p.m. (6:00 p.m. Closed Session), at District Headquarters.
	9. September 21, 2021 – San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Regular Board Meeting at 2:00 p.m., 380 E. Vanderbilt Way, San Bernardino, CA 92408.
	10. September 28, 2021 - West Valley Water District Policy Review & Oversight Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m., at District Headquarters.

	VII. CLOSED SESSION
	1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9(b):  Number of Cases:  Four (4).
	2. REJECTION OF CLAIM – A Claim was filed against WVWD by Kaylin Patrise Agreda claimant(s): Kaylin Patrise Agreda vs West Valley Water District; Claim No. 21-0689
	3. REJECTION OF CLAIM – A Claim was filed against WVWD by Guadalupe Rodriguez. claimant(s): Guadalupe Rodriguez vs West Valley Water District; Claim No. 21-0689

	ADJOURN

	Appendix
	2.1.a · August 5, 2021 - Minutes
	2.2 · 2825 : 2021 HMP Adoption
	2.2.a · Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-21
	2.2.b · Exhibit B - Cal OES Letter
	2.2.c · Exhibit C - FEMA Letter
	2.2.d · Exhibit D - 2021 HMP

	2.4.a · Norma Torres Letter of Support
	2.5.a · Invoice 744987  Summary
	2.6.a · LCW Invoice #1516633
	2.7.a · LCW Invoice #1518522
	2.8.a · Hunt Ortmann Summary-89241 (002)


